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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR" PORT

TO: THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NATIONAL BUILDING AND MARKETING COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Opinion:

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of NATIONAL BUILDING AND MARKETING
COMPANY - A Sandi Joint Stock Company - (the "Company®) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group™) which comprise of the consolidated statement of financial position as at 3] December 2023,
the consolidated staterments of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’
equity and cash flows for the year theén ended, and notes to the consolidated financigl statements, including
a summary of significent sccounting policies.

[n our opinion, the accompanying consofidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2023 and its consolidated financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements fssuad by
Saudi Orgenization for Chartered and Professional Accountants (“SOCPA™).

Basis for Opinion:

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standerds on Auditing (“15As™) as endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors'
Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements section of our reporl. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Intemational Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in sccordance with the IESBA Code.
We believe that the sudit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion,

Key Audit Matters:

K.y audit matters are those matters thal, i our profeszional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
ol the conzolidated financial statements of the current vear. These matiers were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
# separate opinion on these matters. The following describes each of the key sudit matters and how they
were addressed:

A Professianal Limited Liabilily Company with Caplial of (2.000.000 SAR) - CR. 1010456353
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
NATIONAL BUILDING AND MARKETING COMPANY
(A Sawndi Joint Stock Com pany)

Key Audit Matters (continoed)

Property, plant and equipment

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our andit

Property, plant and equipment is a key audit maser
83 measuring the depreciation and impairment of
property, plant and equipment requiress management
to make udgments, assumplions and estimates
related to determining uwseful life, depreciation
method and impairment testing for property, plant
gnd equipment (if any),

As indicated in Note No. (4), the net book value of
property, plant and equipment as ai December 11,
2023 amounted to SAR 360,074,016 (3] December
2022: SAR 340,273,129).

Our gudit pm-:mdms included, in our judgment, among others;

* Studying and examining the intermal control systems related
L ﬂ'u: financial operations of property, machinery and
equipment.

* Conducting an analytical and documentary study of the
movements of addiions and exclusions made on the
actounts of property, plast and equipment,

* Verify the actual presence and ownership of the group for
sugh propery, plant and equipment.

* Verifying the validity of the consumption caleulation and
studying the managements estimates of the approved
COTEUMMIcH rates.

* Verifying that there are no indications of impairment in the
'_o.-a]m:_ of property, plent and equipment that require an
imprment feai,

o Verify the wvalidity of presentation, disclosure and
accounting policies in accordance with the relovant
International Financial Reporting Standards

Refer to node (3) !i:n:'i]'l:_n-:munring policy related to Property, plant and equipment and note (4) for related disclosures,

Inventory valuation

Key audit matter

How the mutter was nddressed in our audit

[nventory is considered a key audit matter due to the
rature of the group's activity, which depends mainly
on inventory in generating revenue and its impact on
business results. And since the evaluation of |
inventary and determining the impaimment in s
value requires the use of several imporant
mssumptions and estimates thet may have 8 material
impact on the consoelidated financial statements of the

Rroup.

The inveniory balance as al December 31, 2023
amounted (o SAR 6RO69601 (2022 SAR
57,504,125,

Crur audit procedures included, in our | udgrm:ntr, emigng others:

= Anended and observed the annual inventory of the Group's
stock as on 31 December 2023 to verify physical presence
and assess the adeguacy of stock presence control for a
sample of tems,

# For oul of stock ftems including raw materials and spare
pirts, we have reviewed the procurement processes, tested
supporting documents and examined internal control
syslems on asample basis,

» Testing the reasonabléness of the estimates used by the
company in studying the decline in the value of stagnant and
slow moving inventories,

# Testing the net realizable valee and comparing it with the
recent selling prices of the inventory after deducting the cost
to sefl it on & sample basis, As well as examining the
company’s policy to detérmine cost using the weighted
average method,

» Evaluating the adequacy of disclosures in the financial
staterments to meet the requirements of the relevant
Intgrnational Financial Reporting Standards.

Refer 1o note (3) for the accounting policy related to inventory and note (9) for related disclosures.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
NATIONAL BUILDING AND MARKETING COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
Key Audit Matters (continued)

Revenue recognition

Key sudit matter

Revenue recognition is a key audit matter, as
revenue is an important element of the Group's
performence and resolts. And since it includes
inherent risks that management may bypass
internal contral procedures by recording revenues
in excess of their actual value to achieve goals or
improve the results of the group,

In-addition to the group's reliance on a significant
proportion of revenues from related parties,

A indicated in Mote Mo, (19, the group’s revenue
amounted to SAR 700,611,601 for the year ended
December 31, 2023 (2022: SAR 652,189,564).

Revenue includes related party revenue of 16.4%
af total revenue for 2023 (2022: 26.9%)

How the matter was uidrumd‘-in our audit

Ouraudit procedures included, in our judgment, ameng others:

s Testing the design and effectivencss of interngl contral
procedures i relation o revenue récognition and fts
receivables,

# Test cuthng procedures to ensure that revenues are reconded
in the correct periods.

» Analytical procedures to understand the reasons for the
discrepancy in revenues comparsd o the previous. year,
verify their rationale, and determine whether there are
significant fluctuations that need additional examination in
light of our understanding of current market conditions,

« Defailed testing of a sample of the products sold and
verifying the proper application of the revenue recognition
palicy.

* Verifying the approprinteness of the accounting policy to
realize the group's revenue in accordance with the
requirements of International Reporting Standard Mo, (15)
Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

+ With regard 1o related parly revenues, in addition to some of
the audit procedurss mentioned above, we evaluated the
process followed by the group when registering and
reporting on related party revenues and determining whether
they are within the normal course of the proup and on
comimercial hasis.

# Evaluate the adequacy of disclosures in the financial
statérments in light of the relevant requirements of the
International Financial Reporting Standards.

Refer to note (3) for the accounting palicy related to revenue and note (19) for related disclosures.
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INDEPENDENT AUDMTOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
NATIONAL BUILDING AND MARKETING COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Steck Company)

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. Cther information comprises the Information included
in the annual repart other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditors® report thereon. The
annugl report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors” report,

Our optnion on the consolidated finangial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any fonn of essurance conclusion therson.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. [f, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other infarmation, we are reguired to report that fact 'We have nothing o
decide on this matter

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the consolidated Financial
Stntements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial stetements
in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards ([FRS) as endorsed in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements that are issued by Saudi Organization for Chartered
and Professiomal Accountants (“SOCPA™), Repulations for Companies and Company’s By-laws, and for
such internal control s management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether die to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, managemant is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continus 8% o going concermn, disclosing, as applicable, matiers related 1o going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless menagement either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic altornative but to do so,

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.,

Auditors’ Hesponsibilities for the Auwdit of the consolidated Financial Statements

Our ohjectives are to obtein reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as-a
whale are free from material misstatement, whether duee to frasd or error, and to 1ssue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinton. Reasonable assurance 5 a high level of asserance, bul iz not a guarantee that an
audit conducied in accordance with International Standards on Aoditing ("15A=") a2 endorsad in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia will always detect a malerial misstatement when it exists. Misstaternents can arise
from fraud or error and are conzsidered matenal if, individually ar in the aggrepate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consalidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in seccordance with International Standards on Auditing ("15As") as endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, we exercise professional judgment end maintsin professional scepticism
throughout the audit, We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of meterial misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due 10 Traud or error, design and perform sudit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as frand may
invelve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
NATIONAL BUILDING AND MARKETING COMPANY
(A Sawdi Joint Stock Company)

Auditors” Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

= (¥btain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures thiat
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control,

=  Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropristeness of management's use of the going concern basis of sccounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related 1o events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as & going concem, IF we
conclude that 2 material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue a5 a going concern.

» Evalugte the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consofidated financial stslements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

= Obtaining sufficient appropriate avdit cvidence regarding the financial information of the
establishments or commercial activities within the group, to express &n opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the groip
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant sedit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our awdit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relztionships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financizl statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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NATIONAL BUILDING AND MARKETING COMPANY

{(SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMEBER 31, 2023
{Saudi Rivalsg)
31 Deeamber 2022 | January 2022
Mufe 31 December 2023 [Restaied) {Riestated)
Asgets
Mon-current assets
Property, plunt and equipment, nat 4 560,074,016 340 273,129 138 567 549
Right-of-use assets, nat 21 1,263,756 1,853,772 32,840,539
Investments in associntes [ 19,877,042 D4 606G 15,635,443
Investments Property, nel 7 331,518,668 19410265 19,485,523
[nvestments in subsidiaries - . 25,000
Faid under investment account . - 75,004
Total non-current assels 712,733, 4R1 436,197 855 407,729,094
Current assels
Investment at fair value through profit or loss § 3,600,637 1154518 483,336
Inventory, net g 68,969,601 57,804,129 47719518
Trade receivablas-and other debit balances, net 1] 81,329,778 80,570,008 66,278 E44
Due from related partics (171 138,707,912 25485349 65,557 408
Cash und cash equivalents 2 B.515.250 9837 867 [5493.844
Total currént nssets 301,123,178 186,851,871 195,332,950
Tatal asseis 1,013,856,660 643,049,726 §03.262.044
Shareholders’ equity and liabilitics
Shareholders’ equlty
Share capital 13 120,000,000 120,000,000 120,000,000
Stalutory reserve 14 21,393,020 18,005,007 14,068,978
Retained eamings 152,195,711 124,979,007 90,167,333
Crains from re-measurement of emplovees” defined benefits 2,243,565 a7 08% 2134419
Met owners' equity attributable to the shareholders of
Pareat Company 105,831,696 263,591,103 226,390,730
Non-controlling fnterests 1,772,170 a0 ) -
Total Sherehalders® equity 307,604,966 263,646,894 426,390,730
MNon-current linkilities
Loans - non-current portion 16 - - 45,486,000
Lease obligations - nan-current poriion 52 85,402,057 BETE.633 32,301,673
Emplovess’ defined henefit ohligations 15 4 317,512 4 64 8 058 2,362 485
Total non-current Hahilities 85,719,569 3,587.571 BO,150,158
Current liabilities
Leans - current portion 6 369,709 315 Z58. 902 2592 216,828,160
Lease phligations - corrent portion 52 §3,334.508 |, 007455 563,508
Trade payables and other credit balances 17 98,675,788 46,637,005 63,631,943
Duee to telaied parties 112 51.%13,845 65,821 858 13,565,161
Prowizion for estimated zakat I8 1,898,662 | 506651 2,153,384
Totol current lhalbilities 606,532,115 373 8BTS 261 294,721,156
Total liabilities TH6,251,6%94 379,402 832 376,871,314
Totul Shareholders” equity and liabilities 1,00 3.5856,660 B3 045,726 603,262,044
i = _ L T
£ -"-?': i -?1‘_‘:.1}-:'1-_-@ r; y __"l._'

- 5,
Chailrman of Board of Directors

-

Executive Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
&



NATIONAL

BUILDING AND MARKETING COMPANY

(SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

{Saudi Riyals)

Mot 2023 2022 {Restared)
Revenue 19 700,611,601 652,189,564
Cost of revenue 20 {616,473,012) (582018527
Gross profit 84,138,589 70,171,037
General and administrative expenses 21 (21,162,304) {18.376,25T
Provision for expected credit losses 102 (2,404.961) (3,3066.859)
Net operating income 60,571,324 48427921
Investments profit at fair value through profits or losses B Q20,487 461,017
The Company’s share the profits / (losses} of itz associate &'l 2,391,255 (T21,0445
Acquisition gains on Al-Ahsa Real Estate Growth Fund I 6,483,038 -
Finance costs 22 (43 418,548) {10,300,635)
Other revenue 23 5,881,361 1,4511'_}_51
Net income for the year hefore zakat 32,828,917 40,320,240
Zakat estimated expenses I8 (2,201,380 (1,543,872)
Net income for the year 30,537,528 38,776,368
Profit for the vear attributable to:
shareholders of the parent company 30,614,473 38,742,308
Mon-controlling interests (76,945) 34,060
Net profit for the year 30,537,528 38,776,368
Other comprehensive income
Items that may not be reclassified to statement of profit or
loss for subsequent perinds:
Gains {loss) of re-measurement of employees’ defined benefits |5 1,636,709 (1,527.330)
Total Other comprehensive income 1,636,709 (1.527,330)
Total comprehensive income for the year 32,174,237 17242038
Other comprehensive income for the year:
shareholders of the parent Company 31,251,349 37.214.978
Non-contrailing interests (77.112) 34,060
32,174,237 17,249 038
Earnings per share attributable to equity holders of the
parent Company
Basic 24 2.55 3.23
Diluted 24 2.55 3.43
5% >
\:i{'[} . o -
A : et Oy

Expcutive Director

s > N
Chalirman of Board of Directors

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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NATIONAL BUILDING AND MARKETING COMPANY

(SALD JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

{Saudi Riyals)

Hevaluation Met pwners” equity
reserve for anributable to the Tuotal

Bhare Stalutory Retnined investments shareholders of Mon-controlling Shareholders’

capital PESEFVE EAFTInES through O] Farent Company interests ety
Balance as at | January 2023 120,000,000 18,976,366 133,721,238 607,089 273,304,693 55,791 273,360,484
Adjusiments {(Note 28) - (971,359)  (B.,742.231) 5 (9,713,590) - (9,713,590)
Balance as at 1 January 2023 (Restated) 120,000,000 18,005,007 124,979,007 607,089 263,501,103 55,791 263,646,894
Met profit for the year ¥ - 3614473 ) 30,614,473 (76,945) 30,537,528
(Mher comprehensive income = % . 1,636,576 1,636,976 (167} 1,636,700
Total comprehensive income - - 30,614,473 1,636,876 32.251.349 (77,112} 32,174,237
Transferred to statitory reserve from retained eamings - 3388,013 (3,388,013 - - - -
Acquisition of non-controlling interests - - - - - 11,783,835 11,783,435
Results of acquisitions in subsidianes - - {%,756) - (9, 756) 9,756 -
Balance as at 31 December 2023 120,000,000 21,393,020 152,195,711 1,243,965 195,832,696 1,772,270 307,604,966
Balance as at 1 January 2022 120,000,000 14 250,677 91622627 2,134 419 228007723 - Z2R.007.723
Adjustment (Mote 28) o (161.699) {1:435,294) = ___ [1.616905) . (1.616.993)
Balance as at | Januvary 2022 (Restated) 120,000,000 14 088 978 90,167 333 2134419 226,390,730 - 6390730
Reconsolidation from consolidated the subsidieries - - {14,605]) - {14,605) 21,731 T IEﬁ
Wet profit for the year (Restated) 38742308 . 38,742 508 34,060 38,776,368
Other comprehensive income 5 - % {1,527,330) (1,527,330) (1,527,330
Tuotal comprehensive income & - 38, 742308 (1.527.3300 37,214 978 34,00l 3T1349,03_E.
Transferred 10 statutory reserve Qr?\ : 3016029 (3.916.029) : : k .
Balance as ot 31 December 2022 \:i:{[}‘ <y 120,000,000 18,005,007 124,979.007 607 089 r- 263590 103 55791 263,646 894

Finance Department ExEcutive Directar Chalrman n;Bmﬂ:l of Directors

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consalidated financial statements




NATIONAL BUILDING AND MARKETING COMPANY
(SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASHFLOW

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

(Saudi Riyals)

CASH FLOWS FROM DPERATING ACTIVITIES

M=t meame for the vear before £ekai wiivibulable i Sharehoiders
et Income sdjusted to net cash flows from aperating sctivities
Dreprecintion an property, plant and equipment

Depreciution of renl estale invesimenls

Degrecintbon of righi-ofuss assts

Flnnnce charges

Company's share in {profas) From mvesiments losses of an nszocinte sompany
Prowvislon for expected eredit loss

Provigion far slow moving invendorss

Right of me assels adjustments

Profa from disposal of the dpn jo s Bssets

Profa of [nvestreniz &1 (air vlug throaigh profis or loss

Profi from dispesnl of nel estale invesimints

Profie from acquiring on Al-Ahss Real Esiate Crowth Fand
Empdovess” defined benefit obligatinns

Change in sssets and Hnhilities:
Inwvemtory
Trage receivables and other debit balances
Dhue from relnied partics
Trace poyabies and ather eredit balances
Dhse b related pariies
Znkat pail
Paid from employee deficed bencfit obligaions
Finence charpes paid
Mt eash flews from operating neiivities
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payrsents for the acquisitson of m subsidiary. net of cash soquired
Purchasz of property, plani and equipmend
Addiliom real estale invesiments
Tiain froem the sale of real estate investments
Dz torelnled panies
Divicdends from vekomens at fale value from prodii or boes
Purchasing [rvestments in msocimed companies
Purchase of invesiments # fair value thraugh profitar bos
Mot cndh flews used in bnvesting acilvities
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Lenses paid
e fram relpied parties
D to reloted porives
et moversen! in loans and fncilites
et caah flews (used in) / from flaancing sctivities
Ket change i cash balances during the yesr
Cash and eaab equivnlents af heginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents end at of the year
sgn-cish I
Additicms af the Aight Lo use the assets and investment properties exchunge for louse liahiliies
Transfer from &n investrent in et associse to an lavestment inoa sabsidiary

Clepring the provigion for estimared zakar and votue added fax
Changs in noa-contredling imlenet

er conztnzciion far nvestment propertics
idinries from due torelated panies
the aequisition, plesse refer to Note 1. o £

I ' |

\

2021 2027 [Resisbed)
I1.A818.017 40,3240
32,019,705 27990 .02%
1N, 440, 0ED 75,258

13,325 LSES. 754

43 418,548 10,300,635
(1,301,155) 731,024
L4004, me1 3,366 85%

. 300,000

- 6L 520

- (2. V52561 )

(H20,457) (461,017}
(5, 8-H0,251) -
(6483 038) =
1,800,283 947,413
131, 18739 R3.258,750
(11,165,471) (10.384.611)
11,218,139 (29,316,532}

156,693,39) 1862823
A7.603,624 [P A5 R )
L092R611 G A74.815

(115.461%) {047 A9y
[RUAR L] {1AR2%0)
{20,653, 188) (B30 65A
IA0,000. 107 E6. 224417

44,355, 508) .

(5T, H30.500) 128655, 505 )

119,075,642 ,
T3, 100,000 -

{13,392,750) {16607.250)
TES A .

. (ROO0G, 000

(306352 (2210, [&5)
(123,070414) (I275]4.020)
[43,095,006) (R14.052)
(56,520,173} 37.208,536
[20,443.874) 2.6%50.000
116,807 053 [3A11.86R)
(%,261,100) 19533600
{1322.617) {5.65547T)

9847 BT I5493.844

B.505,230 9 KIT.HET
207,980,362 .
77374.902 53,750
(973,765) (1.121706)
(77,1133 34,064

- 24306 RF9

- V3.0H

- 1485323

S 7,426
:':H".. f-\.cll_l:-.: '-.-..1"-.. =

Exsoutive Director

Chalrman of er:i af Directors

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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NATIONAL BUILDING AND MARKETING COMPANY
(SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2023

{Saudi Riyals}

1. Activities
Mational Building and Marketing Company, a listed Saudi Joint Stock Company, was established as
per Ministerial Resolution No. (70/Q) on 29/03/14353H (30/01/2014) and according to the Anticles of
Association and its latest amendments on 22/05/2017. The Company was registered in the Commercial
Register in Rivadh under (010153678 dated 17/1/14Z0 H.

The Company's activity is the whaolesale and retail trade in construction materials (iron, timber, manual

and industrial tools, electronic and computer applisnces; spare parts, office equipment, office furniture,

educational aid, maintenance of medical and scientific equipment and supplies, hospital and laboratory

supplies, medicel furniture, spare pants, general building materials, decoration works, paints. chemicals

and advertising gifts.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Head Office and the following

branches:

g. Laboratory Branch of National Building and Marketing Company, C.R. 1010371828, issued on
13/06/1434 H. {expired)

b, MNaher Al Bardouni Branch of Mational Building and Marketing Company, C.R. 010283864, issued
on 27/03/1431 H (expired).

e. Branch of National Building and Marketing Company, C.R. 1010612194, issued on 26/01/1439 H.

-The accempanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its

subsidiary, referred to as the “Group™ and they are as follows:

Place of Sharcholding

Bubsidiary incorporation  paid Capital percentage
2023 2022

Ajeej Steel Manufacturing Company (A) KSA 180,000,000 %100 %o 10
Flex Shield Company for Information
Technology (B) FEA 125,000 el il
Yuzmash Industry Company (C) KSA 55,000 WSS %S5
Alma Company for Military Industry (D) FSA 75,000 bl b0
Arabian Steel Trading Company (E) KSA 125000 %100 %

(A)On 15/3/2021, the company’s Article of Association was amended, with the exit of the partner / Fahad
Al-Thunayan bin Fahd Al-Thunayan and his relinguishment of all his shares in the company, amounting
to 180,000 shares, with a total value of 180,000,000 Saudi riyals, mncluding its rights and obligations in
favor of the MNational Building and Marketing Company with Keep the same name and commercial

registration number

(B) On 2511/2020, the group contributed 1o the capital of Flexible Shield Company for Information
Technology - a closed joint stock company - by 43% in the capital amounting to 500,000 Saudi rivals,
and 25% of the value of our contribution to the capital amounting 1o 125,000 Saudi rivals was paid. The
remaining value of the shares on the dates determined by the Board of Directors. The commercial register
was issued on 11/02/202] and the articles of association on 26/10v2021, Flexible Shield Information
Technology Company was contralled on 08/06/2022, and the ownership percentage was increased from
43% to 60%. On 15/11/2023, the company increased its ownership percentage to 90%.

(C) On 17/10/1442H corresponding to 29/053/2021, Yuzmash Industry Company - Limited Liability was
established with a capital of 100,000 Saudi riyals, shared by 55% of the capital with an amount of 55,000
Saudi riyals. The commercial registration was issued on 23/12/2021, and the first fiscal year ends on 31
December 2022, and the company has not started 1o practice activity since its inception to date,

(D) On DB/12/2021, 60% of its capital of 500,000 Saudi rivals was contributed to the cepital of Alma
Company for Military Industry - a elosed joint stock company, and 25% of the value of our contribution
ta the capital of 300,000 Saudi ryals was paid at a value of 75,000 Saudi riyals, provided that The
remaining contribution will be paid on the dates determined by the Board of Directors. The commerncial
register and articles of association of the company have been issued, and the company has not begun to
practice activity since its founding to date.
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1-  Activities (continuwed)

(E) On 22/05/1445H, corresponding to 04/12/2023, the Arab Steel Commercial Company was established -
n closed joint stock company with a paid-up capital of 125,000 Saudi rivals, and 100% of the capital was
eontributed in the amount of 125,000 Saudi rivals. The first fiscal vear ends on December 31, 2024, The
company's financial stalements have been consolidated, and the company has not started practicing
activity sinoe its founding to date.

In addition to the subsidiaries mentioned above, management has concluded that the Group has effective
control over the fund mentioned below, and has therefore begun to consolidate the financial statements of
that fund, effective from the effective date of exercising control over it

[ Property Date of effective
Investment fund ownership | Date of incorperation canirol Purpose
Al-Ahaa Real Estate Achigving capital growin in the
Growih Fund &1,62%: T September 2021 Pl May 2023 | meediom weon for unitholders

Acquisition during the year
On May 11, 2023, the company acquired 91.62% of the equity in the Al-Ahsa Real Estate Growth Fund “the
Fund" for SAR 1224 million.

The Company terminated this acquisition as & business under “Intemnational Financial Reporting Standard
No. 3 - Business Combinations™ and accordingly this transaction was accounted for using the acquisition
method inaccordance with International Financial Reporting Standard Ne, 3, with the Company being the
acguirer and the Fund heing the acguirer. Non-controlling interests were measured based on the percentage
owned by them share of net recognized assets of SAR 1.8 million,

The fair values of the scquired assets and committed liabilities at the acquisition date are as follows:

The amount as on

ltem name the date of wequisition
Aggel acguired

Cash and cash equivalents 620,778
Trade receivables and other debit balances 2356635
Investments Property 138,266,125
Total assel 144,243,538
Liabilities

Trade payables and other credil balances 3624987
Total linbilities 3,624,987
Met identifiable assets 140,618,551
Mon-controlling Interesls 11,783,835
Acguisition gakns B, 483,038
Purchase amount 22,351,678

1. Basis of preparation consolidated financial statements

2.1 Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the [nternational Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) as endorsed in the Kingdom of 5audi Arabia and other standards and
pronouncements issued by the Saudi Organization for Chartered and Professional Accountants - SOCPA.

The new Companies Law issued through Royal Decree M/132 on 1/12/1443H (corresponding to June 30,
2022) (hereinafter referred as "the Law") came into force on 26/6/1444 H (corresponding to January 19,
2023). For certain provisions of the Law, full compliance is expected not later than two years from 26/6/1444
H (corresponding to January 19, 2023). The management is in process of assessing the impact of the New
Companies Law and will amend its Articles of Association/By-Laws for any changes to align the Articles
to the provisions of the Law. Consequently, the Company shall present the amended By-Laws to the
shareholders/partners in their Extraordinary / Annual General Assembly meeting for their ratification.

1
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2. Basis for consolidating the financial statements (continued)

1.2 Basis for financial consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include the financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (Note 1),

Subsidiaries are companies controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when the group has:

- Control over the investee (having rights that give the Group the current ability 1o direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

- Exposure, or rights, to variable returns through its relationship with the investee,

- The sbility to use its power aver the investee company to affect its retums.

In general, there is an assumption that a majority of voting rights results in contral. In support of this
presumption, when the Group has less than o majority of voting or similar rights in an investee, the
Group considers &ll relevant facts and circumstances when determining whether it controls an investee.
This includes:

- The contractual arrangement(s) with the ather voting rights holders of the investee company.

- Rights resulting from other contractual arrangements.

- Group voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Group reassesses whether or nat it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one ar more of the ebove elements of control.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when contrel of the subsidiary is transferred to the Group and
ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of
the subsidiary that were acquired (or disposed of) from the date of transfer of contral over the company
during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group until the exercise of
such control ceases,

2.3 Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cest basis using the accrual

basis of accounting and the going concern basis, except for:

+ Derivative financial instruments measured at fair value.

» Employee defined benefit obligations, actuarial present value calculations are used based on the
projected unit increment method.

» Investmenis measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

2.4 Functional and presentation currency
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Saudi Riyals, which is the functional and
presentation currency of the Company

2.5 Going concern

The group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by an amount of 305,408,947 Saudi rivals.
The consalidated financial statements were prepared on the basis of the going concern principle, as the
future cash flows of the consolidated financial statements were studied, and the management coneluded
that the group has & strong financial position and operational performance that enahles it to fulfill its
obligations.
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2. Basis for consolidating the financial statements (continued)

2.6 Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

- The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires management to make judpments,
estimates and assumptlions that affect the application of accounting policies and the amounts included
in the report for assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. The estimates and related assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances and result that are the basis for making the judgments about carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not chservahle from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

- The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, and the revision of the
pccounting estimates is recorded in the period in which the estimales are revised if the modification
affects only that period or in the period of the review and future periods if the modification affects both
the current and future periods.

2.6.1 Judgmenis

The following is an explanation to the significant judgments when applying the accounting policies that
have a material impact on the amounts presented in the consolidated financial statements and the notes
thereto:;

Fulfilment of performance obligations

The Company evaluates each of its contracts with customers to determine whether performance
obligations have been satisfied over tinse or at a point in time in order to determine the appropriate
methad for recognizing revenue under the provisions of the relevant laws and regulations.

Determination of transaction prices

The Company determines transaction prices in relation to each of its contracts with customers. When
making such judgment, it assesses the impact of any variable consideration in the contracl as a result
of discounts or fines and the existence of a significant financing component within the contract, or any
non-cash consideration within the contract.

2.6.2 Assumptions and estimates
The following is an explanation of information to assumptions and estimates of uncertainty that have a
significant impact on the amounts presented in the consolidated financial statements and the notes:

Goimg concern

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the going concemn
principle. The Management has made an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, Despite what is indicated in note {2/5), the Group is satisfied that it has the necessary resources
to continue in business for the foresceable future. Furthermore, Management is not aware of any
material unceriainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue &5 a
going concern according to the going concemn prineiple.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Management reviews the residual value of useful lives annually to verify that it refleets the expected
benefit to be obtained. IF it differs from previous estimates, changes in depreciation expense in current
and future periods are adjusted, ifany.

Lk
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1. Basis for consolidating the financial statements (continued)
Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When it is not possible to measure the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
in the statement of financial pesition on the basis of prices traded in active markets. [ts fair value 5
determined using valestion methods, including the discounted cash flaw madel. The inpuls to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible. When this is not feasible, a degree of
judgment is required to determine the fair value. The judgments include considerations of inputs such
as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility risk. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affoct
the fair value of financial instruments.

Possible price is evaluated. resulting from business combination. at fair value at the acquisition date as
part of a business combination. When the price meets the definition of & financial liability, It 15
subsequently re-measured at fair value at each reporting date, The fair value determination is based on
discounted cash flows. Key assumptions take into account the probability of meeting each performance
ohjective and the discount factor.

Interest rate implicit in leases

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in all leases. Therefore. it uses the
Ineremental Borrowing Rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The incremental borrowing rate is the
rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with & similar
security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
econamic environment. The Company estimates the [BR using observable inputs (such as market
interest rates) when available and is required 1o make Company-specific estimates.

Provision for expected eredit losses on trade receivables

The Company uses a provision matrix to caleulate expected credit losses on trade receivables. The
matrix is based on past default experience monitored by the Company. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analyzed.
The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic
conditions and ECLs is & significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive 1o changes in
circumstances and of forecast economic conditions.

Impairment of non-financial assets

{Except for inventory, investment properties and goodwill - if any - which are separately assessed for
impairment), Management reviews at each reporting date the carrying values of ather non-linancial
assets to determine if there is any indicator that the value of nen-financial asses may be impaired, In
the event of such indication, the recoverable value is estimated and the book value is reduced thereto
and the impairment loss of those assets is recognized and charged to the statement of income.

The recoverable amount is measured using the higher of fair value of the asset less the cost to sell it or
the present value of the cash flows expected to be derived from it according to the discount rate,

Indications of impairment of & non-financial asset may be information that a material impairment has
occurred the market value of the asset is more than expected as a result of normal use or the availability
of evidence of ohsolescence, damage or deterioration af its expected economic performance whether
in its operating results or in the expected cash flows from it

When there are indications that a recognized impairment loss in prior periods may no longer exist or
have decreased, impairment foss is reversed only to the extent that it does not exceed the previously
recognized impairment loss.
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1, Basis for consolidating the financial statements (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets {continued)

- Note (3/7) Impairment of inventory

- Mote (3/11) Measurement of employees' defined benefit obligations
- Pote (3513} Provisions

- Naote (3715/1): Impairment of financial assets measured at cost or amortized cost

J. Material aceounting policies

The Group has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented
in these consolidated financial statements, except if mentioned otherwise,

In addition the Group adopted Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to 1AS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2) from 1 January 2023, The amendments require the disclosure of
‘material’ rather than ‘*significant’ accounting policies. Although the amendments did not
result in any changes 1o the accounting policy themselves, they impacted the aceounting policy
information disclosed in certain instances,

3.1 Current/non-current classification of assets and liabilitics

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current'non-current
classification as follows:

Assets
= Anasset is classified as curvent when:
*  Itis expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in narmal operating cycle;

= It is held primarily for the purpese of trading;
* Itis expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

* iscash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to setile & liability for at
least twelve months afler the reporting period,
- All other assets are ¢lassified as non-current.

Linbilities
- A liahility is classified a5 current when:
*  Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cyele;

= ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
*  Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

*  There ig no unconditional right te defer the settlement of the lisbility for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.
= All other Habilities are elassified gs non-current.
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I

3. Material accounting policies (continued)
3.2 Property, plant and equipment

3.2.1 Recognition and measurement
- Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss, if any, except for land and Constructions work in progress.

- Cost includes expenditure that is divectly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of sell-
constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to
bringing the assets to & working condition for their intended use, the costs of dismantling and removing
the items and restoring the site on which they are located, and capitalized borrowing costs,

- Ciains and losses on disposal of an item of property and equipment are determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property and equipment, and are recognized net
within the statement of incame.

3.1.2 Derecognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses anising from
derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the income statement,

3.2.3 Subsequent costs of acquisition

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the camrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow
to the Company, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part 15
derecognized, The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognized in
the statement of ncome a8 incurred,

3.2.4 Deprecation

- Depreciation is caleulated based on the cost of assets less residual value. The significant components
of individual assets are estimated, If a component has a useful life different from the useful life of the
remaining asset, the useful life of that component is depreciated independently.

- Depreciation is recognized in the statement of income using a straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of each component of property and equipment. The methods of depreciation, useful lives
and residual value are reviewed at each financial position date, and adjusted ifapprapriate. Depreciation
of an asset begins when it is available for use. Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of when the
psset is classified as held for sale or is when the asset is derecognized.

- Improvements 1o buildings on a leased land and buildings constructed on a leased land are depreciated
over the period of their economic productivity or the unfinished lease period whichever is less. The
following are the estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods:

- Buildings on leased lands B%- 13 % - Plant and equipment 15%

- Motoer vehicles 20% - Furniture and decorations B 0%

- Electrical devices and air- 10 - Tonls I 5%
conditioners

- Scaffolding and Fittings 10%4

3.3 Projects under construction

Projects in progress are stated at cost and include the cost of construction, equipment and direct
overheads. Capital work in progress is not depreciated. It will be depreciated by the Company when it
is ready for use as il is transferved to property and equipment.

1h
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3. Materinl accounting policies (continued)

3.4 Investmen! Properties

a) Recognition

Lands and lands on which buildings are built and buildings owned by the company for the purposes of
generating rental income or to increase the value of capital, or for both purposes, are classified as
investinent properties. Properties that are constructed or developed for future use as investment
properties are also classified as investment properties.

b} Measurement
Investment properties are measured al cost less accumulated depreciation, if any. Where no
consumption is calculated for lands and [ands on which buildings are built. Building depreciation is
calculated according to the straight-line method based on its useful life by adopting the following
annual percentages: {real estate investment) School building 3%

Right to use &n asset 20

Investment Properties are shown at cost in accordance with Intemational Accounting Standard No.
{40}, as the standard allowed the company to record its Investment Properties either at cost or at fair
value, provided that there is no obstacle preventing the ability to reliably determine the value
Investment Properties. The company’s management has chosen the cost model to record its Investment

Properties

1.5 Right-of-use assets and lease rights

- The Company recognized new assets and labilities for different types of its operating leases. Each
lease payment is allocated between settling the Liabilitits and the finance cost. Finance costs are charged
io the statement of statement of profit or loss over the term of the relevant lease in order to produce a
constant periodic interest of charge on the remaining balanee of the liubilities for each accounting
period. The right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term on a straight-line basis.

- Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis,
1. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

= The amount of initial recognition of lease lability

- Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date minus lease incentives received
- Any initial direct costs; and

= Restoration cosis.

2. Lease liabilitics include net present value of following lease payments:

- Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments] less any lease incentives receivable,

- Variablé lease payments that depend on-an index or a rate;

- Amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees;

- The exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option;

- Payments of penalties for terminating the lease; 1f the lease term reflects the tenant's exercise of
that option.
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3. Material accounting policies (continued)

1.5 Right-of-use assets and lease rights (continued)

[f the lease payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate, being the rate that the lessee
would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary (o obtain an asset of similar value in a similar
éconcimic emvironment with similar terms and condwtions,

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized on a straight-
line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a iease term of 12 months or
less.

The terms of leases are renegotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. The lease agreements do nat impose any covenants but the leased assets may not be
used as collateral for borrowing purposes,

The group recognized new assets and liabilities for its operating leases. which represented fuel stations.
Each lease payment is distributed between liabilities and finance costs, The fnancing cost 1s charged
to the statement of comprehensive income aver the lease period so that & fixed periodic interest rate is
achieved on the remaining halance of the lishility for each peried, Right-of-use assets are depreciated
over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease term, on a straight-line hasis,

A6 Investments

3.6.1 Investments in subsidiaries

Subzidiaries ere all entities over which the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies so as to ohtain benefits from its activities. Control is presumed to exist over the subsidiary
when the Company owns, dircctly or indirectly, more than half of the voting power of an investee
unless, in exceptional circumstances, it can be clearly demonstrated that such ownership does not
constitute control, Control also exists when the Company owns half or less of the voting power of an
investee but has other power to govern the financial and operating policies of the entiry

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are consolidated in full from the date of acquisition, being
the date when control is transferred to the Geoup. Consolidation eontinues until the date of such control
CEASES,

3.6.2 Acconnting for investments using equity method of accounting

[nvestments in subsidiaries and associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting by
which #n equity investment is initlally recorded at cost of aequisition and subsequently adjusted to
reflect the investor's share of the income and comprehensive income of the mvestee.

If the Company's share of losses of an investee equals or exceeds its interest in the investee, the
Company discontinues recognizing its share of further losses, However, after the Company’s interest
is reduced to zero, additional losses are provided for, and a liability is recognized, only 1o the extent
that the Company has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
invesiee, [f the investes subsequently reports profits, the Company resumes recognizing its share of
those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognized.

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and which it does not control
or have joint control over: Significant influence is the ability of the Group to participate in the financial
and operating decisions and policies of the investee, and 18 not considered control or joint control over
those policies,
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3.7 Inveniories

Inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realizable value.

The cost is determined as follows:

- Raw materials: The cost includes the costs of purchasing materials and all expenses incurred to bring
them to their present location. The cost is measured using the weighted sverage method.

- Work in progress and finished goods: [t includes the cost of materials used in production in addition
to the cost of direct labor and all other direct and indirect expenses incurred in connection with
converting the product and bringing it to its present location and condition,

Met realizable value is the estimated selling price m the ordinary course of business, less eny expected
costs of completion and the estimated selling costs,

Impairmént of inventory

An assessment is made at each reporting date whether any inventories are impaired by comparing the
carrying amount of each inventory item (or & group of similar items) with the selling price less the cost
of completion and sale. If the net selling price is less than the carrying amount, the impairment loss is
recognized for the inventory.

3.8 Trade receivables and other debit balances

Trade receivables and other debit balances are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not guoted in an active market. Such assets are initially recognized at fair value plus any
transaction costs directly attributable to them,

3.8.1 Provision for expected credit losses

Provision is made for impairment of expected credit losses when there is objective evidence that the
Company will not be able to collect all amounts due in accordance with the underlying terms of the
trapsactions. The main financial difficulty of debtors is the possibility of bankruptey or financial
restructuring, or delay in payment. These are indicators of impairment of trade receivables. In respect
of large amounts individually, an estimate is made on an individual basis Amounts that are not
individually significant but have expired and have not been repaid, they are estimated collectively and
a pravizion is made hased on the length of the period due based on historical recovery ratos.

3.9 Transactions with related parties

A related party
A related party is the person or entity associated with the company whose financial statements are

prepared.
a) If the person or 8 member of his family is closely related to the compeny whose financial statements
are prepared;

11 has control or joint control of the company whose finencial statements are prepared;

2) It has a material impact on the company whose financial statements are prepared. or

1) He is a member of the senior management of the company whose financial statements are prepared
or the parent company of the company whose financial statements are prepared.
b) If the establishment is related to the company whose linancial statements are prepared if any of the
following conditions are met:
1) The establishment and the company whose financial statements are prepared are members of the
same group (which means that each of the parent company and subsidiaries and associates are related
to each other).
2) One of the two companies i5 an associate or joint venture of the other company (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of 4 group of which the other company is 2 member),
1) Both companies are joint ventures of the same third party.

R



NATIONAL BUILDING AND MARKETING COMPANY
(SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2023

(Saudi Riyals)

3.9 Transactions with related parties

A related party

4) One af the two companies is & joint venture of a third company and the other company is an associate
company of the third company.

5) Company is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of any company whose
financis! reports are prepared or & company related to the company whose financial statements are
prepared. If the company that prepares the financial statements is the same that prepares those plans,
the sponsoring business sponsors are also related to the company that prepares the financial statements,
&) the company is controlled or jeintly controlled by a person specified in paragraph ().

7] The persan specified in paragraph (&) (1) has o matertal influence over the company or is a member
of senior management in the company (or its parent company).

B) The company or any member of a groop thereof provides pan of the services of senior management
personnel to the company that prepares its financial statements or to the parent company of the company
that prepares its financial stalements,

3.10 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents within the statement of financial position comprise cash with banks, cash on
hand, short-term deposits with original maturities of three months or less. They are exposed to
insignificant risks of changes in value,

For the purpose of preparing the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash with
banks, cash on hand and the above short-term deposits less outstanding overdraft pecounts that form an
integral pant of the Company’s cash management,

X111 Employees® defined benefit obligations
The end of service benefits for emplovees working in accordance with the 1erms and conditions of the

Labor Law in Saudi Arabia will be due upon termination of their service contracts and charged to the
incoine statement. or the bonuses specified at that time, The amount of the liability is calculated on the
hasis of the present value of the eamed bonus to which the employee would be entitled to leave his
business at the statement of financial position date. The end-of-service benefit payments are based on
the employees” final salaries and allowances and their comulative years, as defined by the conditions
stated in the regulations of the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. An actuarial expen calculates the specific
benefit obligations which include actuarial gains and losses within the other comprehensive income
immediately, if any. The Company determines the interest expense for the liability for the specific
bonuses for the period using the discount rate used to measure the obligation of the bonuses specified
at the beginning of the annual period of the liability.

For Saudi employees, the Company contributes in line with General Organization for Social Insurance
regulations and is calculated a5 a percentage of employees” wages. The Company's obligations arc
limited o these contributions, which are expensed when due.

3.12 Trade payables and other credit balances

Liahbilities are recognized for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether
billed to the Company or not.

113 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when there is a legal or consiructive obligation to the Company arising from
a past event, and the Company is likely to settle the obligation with the possibility of making a reliable
estimate of that obligation,

314 Takat

Zakat iz calculated and provided for by the Company in accordance with the regulations of the Zakat.
Tax and Customs Authority and is charged to profit or loss. Adjustments arising [rom zakat assessment
for the Parent Company and the subsidiary are setled during the reporting period when the final
rssessiment Is issued and are recorded in separate financial statements,
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3. Material accounting policies (continued)

3.15 Financial Instruments

A hnancial instrument is o contract that gives rise 10 a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. A financial asset or a financial liahility is recognized
and measured in accordance with measurement, recognition and disclosure reguirements of IFRS 8.

Relevant detailed accounting policies are as follows:
3.15,1 Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

- Trade reéceivables and deposits are recognized on the date they arise while all other financial assets
are recognized on the trade date at which the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

- Financial assets are initially measured at the transaction price directly attributable to the soquisition
of the asset, including transaction costs except financial assets that are subsequently measured at the
fair value through the income statement, If the arrangement constitutes, in effect, a financing
transaction, & financial asset is recognized at the present value of future payments discounted at a market
rate of interest.

Classification and subsequent measurement

- IFRS 9 has three major catepories of financial assets as follows: Financial assets that measured as
amoriized cost, Assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive imcome and assets measured
at fair value through profit or loss.

- linder IFRS 9, derivatives embedded in contracts containing the basic instrument are financial assels
within the scope of the standard and are not separated. The entire hvbrid financial instrument is assessed
for classification,

- Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as described below:

Financial aszets at amortized cnst

These assets are measured upon initial recognition at fair value plus transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset. After the inttial recognition, these are
measured at depreciated cost using the effective interest method.

Financial assels af fair valoe through other comprehensive income

- On initial recognition, the Company may make an irevocable election (on an instrument-by-
instrument basis) to designate investments in eguity instruments as at FVTOCI, Designation at FVTOCI
is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading or if it is contingent consideration recognized
by an scquirer in a business combination 10 which [FRS 3 applies.

- Investments in equity instruments al FVTOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs, Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in lair
value recognized in other comprehensive income and sccumulated in the investments révaluation
reserve, The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, instead, they will be transferred to retained earnings.

- Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognized in profit or loss when the
Company’s right to receive the dividends Is established, unless the dividends clearly represent a
recovery of part of the cost of the investment,
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3. Material accounting policies (continued)
3.15- Financial instruments; (continued})

3.15.1- Financial assets (continned)

Financial Assets at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and
financial assets classified at initial recognition as fair value through profit or less. Financial agsets are
classificd as held for trading il they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near
term. Afier initial recognition, they are re-measured at fair value.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is primarily derecognized when;

-The contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire;

-The Company transfers the rights 1o receive the contractual cash flows from the asset; Or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through™ arrangement; and either the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or it has neither transferred nor retained substantiallv all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets measured at cost or amortized cost
Under IFRS 9, an impairment review is made al each reporting date for financial assets measured at
amortized cost or FVTOCH except investments In equity instruments as well as contract assets as per
the expected future credit loss model, which requires a significant estimate of how changes in economic
factors affect the expected credit loss models that are determined on a weighted probability basis,
Provision for loss will be measured on one of the following bases:

1. The expected credit loss over 12 months: This expected credit loss arises from default and potential
default events within 12 months after the reporting date.

2.The expected credit loss over the life of the financial instrument: It is the expected credit loss of
financial assets on reporting date since initial recognition. The expected credit loss over |2 months
measurement is applied if the credit risks have not increased substantially at the reporting date, The
entity may determine that the credit risk does not increase substantially in case the instrument is exposed
1o low credit risk &t the reporting date. However, the measurement of expected long-term credit losses
is always applied to trade receivables and contract assets without eny significant financing components.
The entity may choose 1o apply this policy also to trade receivables and contract assets with significant
financing components.

3.15.2- Financial liabilities

Initial measurement

Upon initial measurement Except for financial linbilities that are subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss, the financial liability is measured at the transaction price (including transaction
costs), unless the amangement forms actually financing transaction al the entity (for financial
obligation) or a counter party {for financial asset) of the arrangement.

At initial measurement of financial liabilities that are subseguently measured at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

The arrangement constitutes a financing transaction if payment 15 deferred beyond normal business
terms,

If the arrangement constitutes a finencing transaction, the financial liability shall be measured at the
present value of the future paymems discounted at the market rate of interest for a similar debt
instrument.

Trade payables that have a significant financing component or have a maturity of less than 12 manths
are measured at their transaction price {invoice).
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3. Material accounting policies (continued)
3.15.2 Financial linbilities (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are measured at the amortized cost using the effective interest method i the above
specified conditions have been met. Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at the amortized
eost using the effective interest method. The amorntized cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an mtegral part of the effective interest
rate, Amortization of the effective interest rate is included in the findance mcome within the statement
of profit or loss. IFRS 9 introduces the change in fair value related to changes in the credit risk of
liabilities in the other comprehensive income statement while the remaining amount of the change in
fair value is presented in the statement of income.

Dbt instruments classified as current liabilities are measured at the undiscounted cash amount or other
eash consideration expected to be paid unless the arrangement constitules, in fact, a financing
trangaclion,

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when and only when the obligations are discharged, canceled or
expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms or when the terms of an existing obligation are substantially modified, such
replacement or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original financial liability, along with
recognizing the new obligation. The difference in respective carrying amounts is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss.

3.15.3 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilitics are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financia! position when, and only when the Company currently has a legally enforceable right 1o set off
the recognized amounts; and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset
and settle the lizbility simultancously.

3.16 Revenue recognition
The Company recognizes revenue with customers based on a five-step model, Revenue is recognized
when the entity satisfies a performance obligation and transfers promised goods or services to a

customer. Revenue is generated primarily from sale of goods, The following five steps are applied:

Step 1: Identify the contract with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or
maore parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the eriteria that must be met.

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in
& contract with a customer to transfer a pood or service to the customer,

Step 3: Determine the transaction price; The transaction price is the amount to which the Company
expects 1o be entitied in exchange for the transfer of goods and services to s customer. Transaction
price is measured based on the fair value of the received consideration, after taking inte account the
ggreed payment terms, excluding taxes, fees and amounts collected on behalt of third parties. Theseare
recorded net of trade discounts and volume rebates.
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3. Material accounting policies (continued)

116 Revenue recognition (continued)

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: Where a contract
has multiple performance oblipations, the Company will allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfyving ¢ach performance obligation.

Step 5; Recognize revenue when {or as) the Company satisfies & performance obligation,
Revenue is measured at the fair velue of consideration received or receivahle, teking into account trade
discounts, prompt settlement discounts and volume rebates ellowed by the Company (il any),

-Revenue includes only the total inflows of economic benefits received or receivable to which they
relate. All amounts collected to the account of a third party such as income taxes and value added taxes
are excluded.

-When the inflow of cash or cash equivalents is deferred and the agreement includes in substance a
financing transaction, the fair value of the consideration is the present value of all future receipts that
15 determined using an imputed interest rate.
=The imputed rate of interest is the more clearly determinable of either;

* The prevailing rate for a similar instrument of an issuer with a similar credit rating: or

* A rate of interest that discounts the nominal amount of the instrument to the current cash sales price

of the goods or services.

- The difference between the present value of all future receipts and the nominal amount of the
consideration is recognized as interest income.

1.16.1 Revenues

Revenue are represented as follows:

- Sales are représented in the value of the goods. Net sales is recognized afier deducling discount
allowed when it is delivered to the customer.

- Project revenue % recognized using the percentage of completion method based on the actual
inventory of work performed.

- Rental income resulting from legsing investment propeérty 18 recognized upon contracting or when
providing the service, and the revenue 15 caleulated for the period that relates to the financial period
using & straighi-line method over the rental period.

316.2 Other income
Other income s recognized on an acerual basis,

1.17 Cost of revenue

- Cost of revenee includes production costs and direct industrial expenses, which comprise the cost of
raw materials wsed in production, direct labor, other capitalized costs and operating expenses
associated with production,

- Cost of revenue from goods sold comprise the cost of goods soid and direct costs and overheads
associated with preparing the goods for sale,

- Cost of revenue includes direct costs and expenses associared with the transaction as wel| as the cost
of materials, supplies, direct labor, other capitalized costs and operating expenses.
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R

3. Material accounting policies (continued)

3.18 Finance cost

Finance cost comprises interest expense and other costs on borrowings and finance facilities. All finance
costs are charged to profits or losses as incurred except finance costs related to owning or establishing an
asset that may need some time to be ready for the mtended use. It 15 added to the cost of the asset to be
ready for the intended use,

3.19 General and administrative expenses
General and administeative expenses are expenses directly linked with management and are not
considered direct costs,

3.20 Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are translated into Saudi Rivals and recorded at the
rates of exchange prevailing at the transaction dates. The balances of assets and liabilities recorded in
foreign currencics at the balance sheet date are translated into Saudi Riyals at the exchange rates
prevailing at that date. Profits and losses arising from transactions are reported in the statement of income,

3.21 Sector reports

The Group's has five business activity sectors.

A geographic segment is a group of assets, operations or entities engaged in business activilies from
which it may earn revenee in an economic environment subject to risks and returns that are different from
those of components operating in other economic environments,

3.22 Changes in significant accounting policies and new standards

3.22.1 New Standards and Amendments to Standards and Interpretations:

There are no new standards that have been applied. However, 8 number of amendments to the standards
are effective as of January 01, 2023, but they do not have a material impact on the company’s financial
statements, The following 1s a summary of the amendmenis applied by the company:

Amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements™ on Classification of Liabilities.
These narrowly defined amendments to |AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements clarify that liabilities
are classified as current or non-current, depending on the rights that exist at the end of the reporting
pericd. The rating is not affected by the entity’s expectations or by events after the reporting date {eg,
receipt of a waiver or breach of & covenant). The amendment also clarifies what TAS | means when it
refers to the "settlement” of an ohligation.

Amendments to IAS 1, Practice Statement 2 and TAS 8.
The amendments aim to improve accounting policy disclosures and help users of financial stalements
distinguish between changes in sccounting estimates and changes in agcounting policies.

Amendments to IAS 12 - Deferred Tax relating to assets and liabilities arising from a single

transaction
These amendments require companies to recognize deferred tax on transactions thal, on initial

recognition, result in equal amounts of deductible and taxable temporary differences.
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3. Material accounting policies (continued)
3.22 Changes in sipnificant accounting policies and new standards (continued)

3.22.2 Standards issued not yet applied:
The following is & statement of the new standards and amendments to the applicable standards for the
years beginning on or after January |, 2024 with early application permitted, but the Company did not

apply them when preparing these financial statements,

Amendments to IFRS 16 - Lease Obligations in Sale and Leaseback Transactions.

These amendments include requirements for sale and leaseback transactions in [FRS 16 1o clarify how a
company accounts for sale and leaseback transactions after the date of the transaction. Sale and leasehack
transactions in which some or all of the lease payments are considered to be variable lease payments
depend on an index or rate that is highly probable.

Amendments to TAS 1 - Non-current liabilities with commitments and classification of liabilities

as current OF non-current.

These amendments explain how compliance with conditions with which a company must comply in the
twelve months afier the reporting period affects the classification of liabilities. These umendments are
also intended 1o improve the information provided by the Company in relation to the liabilities subject to
these Terms.

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 - Supplier financing arrangements.

Amendments to IAS 27 — Non-convertibility.

The following are the new International Financial Reporting Standards for Sustainability Disclosure
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January |, 2024 and subject to the approval of the Saud:
Organization for Auditors and Accountants.

IFRS (Sustainability 1) “General requirements for disclosure of financial information related to

sustainability®
This standard includes the basic framework for disclosing material information about sustainability-

related risks and opportumities across an organization's value chain,

IFRS {Sustainability 2) “Climate-related disclosures™
This is the first objective standard issued that sets requirements for entities to disclose information about

c¢limate-related risks and oppartunities.

The Company does not expect that the adoption of these new and amended standards and interpretations
wiil have a material impact on its financial statemenis.
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NATIONAL BUILDING AND MARKETING COMPANY

(SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY - LISTED)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER. 31 2023
(Saudi Rivals)

5. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

5.1. Right-of-use assets — net December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Buildings:

Cost:

Balance at beginning of the yvear 4,105,162 15,627,599
Disposal during the vear ** - (30,985,743)
Additions during the year 513309 -
adjustments during the year - (446.654)
Balance at year-end B 4,708,471 4.195,162
Accumulated depreciation:

Balance at beginning of the yvear 2,541,390 2,787,060
Deprecation charged during the vear ** 903,325 1,585,754
Disposal during the year ** - {1,588 884)
adjustments during the year e [(242.5410)
Balance at end of the vear 3,444,715 2,541, 3%
Net carrying amount at end of the year 1,263,756 1,653,772

- The depreciation of the right to use assets smounted to 903,325 SAR and 1,585,754 SAR for the years
ended on December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, which were included in the cost of revenue

z The depreciation charged during the vear is distributed as follows;

Cost of sales
General and administrative expenses

2023 2022
349,284 126,275
554,041 1,459,479
903,325 585,754

5.1, Lease obligations
Present value of obligation

December 31, 2023

Becember 31, 2032

Current portion 83,334,508 [ O07.455
Mon-current portion 95,402,087 878,633
5.3, The movement of Lease obligations December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Balance at beginning yeur 1,886,088 32,865,181
Additions during the vear (Nate 571 , 7] 207,980,382 =
Disposal during the vear - (31,549,840}
Reclaszification during the year {468.423) 60,3660
Payment during the vear (43,005,096) (814,052}
Accrued interese 12,433,614 1,324,433
Balance at ending vear 178,736,565 | BR&6 088
. Investment in associates
Shareholding
percentage Decembar 3], 2022
2013 2922 December 31, 2023 {Restated)
Investments in German Saudi Industrial Campany (a) 0.08% 9.08% 19,877,042 | 7ABS, 78T
Investments in Al-Ahsa Real Estate Growth Fund (b)  91.62% 61.54% ; 77,374,902
19,877,042 G4, 860,689

{a) The German Saudi Industrial Company - is a closed Saudi joint stock company established and
operating in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The purpese of the company's activity lies in the menufacture
of basic organic chemicals, acetylenc, except for fertilizers and nitrogenous compounds, under
Commercial Registration No. 2050062639 dated Rajab 25, 1428H, corresponding to August 8, 2007,
issued in the city of Dammam. Under license of the Ministry of Energy, Industry and Mineral Resources
Mo, 293 daved Safar 6, 1440H.
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6. Investment in associates (comtinued)

(b) Al-Ahsa Real Estate Growth Fund: This item represents an investment in a real estate investment

fund - Al-Ahsa Real Estate Growth Fund, whose purpose is to achieve capital growth in the medium term

for unit owners. The fund aims to acquire plots ef land for the purpose of initisl andfor construction

development and then sell them with the aim of achieving... Capital gains for unitholders in the fund. 13

million units were offered, with a total of 130 million riyals, at a value of 10 riyals per unit. The company

invested in 8 million units for 10 rivals per unit, for a total of 80 million Savudi riyals, and its details are
as follows:

- An amount of 30 million Saudi riyals was paid in cash during 2022,

- In-kind financing in the amount of 50 million Saudi riyals has been pledged, to be provided in the form
of development work on plots of land owned by the Fund. The morigage on the in-kind units will be
released after commitment to the pledge, and the detatled amount of in-kind financing has been covered
a5 follows:

* Part of the development work was completed on the lands owned by the Fund (Al-Zahraa Project) at
an amaunt of |6.6 million riyals as at the end of 2022 and an amount of 33.4 million rivals as at the end
of the period of September 30, 2023,

The development work referred to above is the Al-Zahraa project, for which the National Construetion
and Marketing Company was appointed as the second contractor through Al-Fayzia Real Estate
Development Company (& sister company) as the first contrector.

On Shawwal 21, 1444 AH, corresponding to May 11, 2023 AD, the company increased its share in
investment ownership in a real estate investment fund - Nomou Al-Ahsa Real Estate Fund, where an
amount of 45 million Saudi rivals was paid to Nomou Financial Company, the fund manager, during the
second quarter of 2023, bringing the company's total investment in the fund 1o as follows:

* Previous ownership percentage: 61.54%, ownership percentage after the increase: %1.62%.

* The value of the previous investment cost: #0 million Saudi riyals, the value of the investment cost after
the increase: a value of 124,976,776 Saudi riyals.

* The number of previous units: 8 million units, and the number of units after the increase is 11,911,024

units,

Crecember 31, 20232

6.1 Movement of investment in associates December 31, 2023 (Audited) (Restated)
Balance at beginning of the year 94 860,689 15,635,483
Additions during the vear - B0,000,000
Translers during the vear {(77,374,902) (53,750)
The company's share in the profits / {loss) for the year 2,391,255 _(721,044)
19,877,042 94 860,689

6.2 Summary of profit and loss and other comprehensive income statement
6.2.1 Summary of profit and loss and other comprehensive income statement the associate
company - German Saudi Industrial Company

December 31, 2023 [Becember 31, 2022

Revenue 200,273,055 218,706,548
Gross profit 68,662,398 50,395,719
Wet profit for the year 27,950,022 22,892 545
Total comprehensive income [or the year 27.899.022 22,649 658
The company's share of profits for the vear 2,391,255 1,904,054

6.2.2 Summary of profit and loss and other comprehensive income

statement - Al-Ahsa Real Estate Growth Fund December 31, 2022

Revenue

Gross profit -
Met loss for the year (4.265,67T)
Total comprehensive losses for the year (4,265,677)
The company’s share in the loss for the year (2,625,098)
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6. Investment in azsociates (continued )
6.3 Summary of the statement of financial position
6.3.1 Summary of the statement of financial position the associate company - German Saudi

Industrial Company D ber 1], 2022
ecember 11, 2

December 31, 2023 (Restated)

Non-current assets 293,313,807 216,762,704
Current asscts 177,023,490 155,578,421
Total assets 470,337,297 372,341,125
Liahilities and equity

MNon-current liabilities 2,591,800 3,354,731
Current liabilities 248,835,344 177,975,264
Tatal equity 218,910,153 191,011,130
Total of liabilities and equity 470,337,297 372,341,128

6.3.2 Summary of the statement of financial position for Fund - Al-Ahsa Real

Estate Growth Fund December 31, 2022

Total assets 127,272,439

Total liabilities |.538,116

Net assets (equity) 125,734,323
7. Investments Property, net

Residentinl villas

Cost Building (under development) Right of use aszel Total
Balance at January |, 2023 19,485,523 . 19485523
Empact of the acquisition on-the fund | 38,268,125 . 138,266,125
Additions during the year . 19,075,642 27 467,073 126,542,715
Digposal during the vear {19, 485,523) - - (19,485,523}
Balanee at December 31, 2023 = 157,341,767 207,467,073 364, 508,540
Deprecintion
Ralunce at January 1, 2023 75258 . . 75,258
Period depreciation 150,517 - 33,200,172 33,440,589
Disposal during the year {225,775} - - {225,775}
Balance at December 31, 2023 . - 33,290,172 33,290,172
Met book value
Ason December 31, 2023 - 157,341,767 174,176,501 331,518,608
Agon December 31, 2022 19410265 - = 19,410,265

Building:

The building item within real estate investments is a lease contract for an Edecational facility “schools™ between the
eompany end Tatweer Buildings Company for a period of 35 Hijri years from $8/23/1442 AH vorresponding to (4/57202 1
ADY until 823/1477 AH corresponding to (3202055 AD).).

- The fair value of real estate investments amounted (o 22,351,433 Saudi rivals as of December 3|, 2022, aceording 1o
the evuluation process carmied out by 1he real estate evaluator, Wahat Al Rai Real Estate Valuation Company, license
holder Mo, 1210000045 (an independent evaluator accredited by the Saudi Autharity for Accredited Valueys). There is
another evaluation whose far value amounted to 25,100,000 Saudi riyals as of December 211, 3022, sccording (o the
eviluation process carried out by the real extate evaloator. Valee Experis Company, and his real estate evaluation pariner,
license holder Mo, 12100006027 (an independent evaluator aceredited by the Saudi Authority for Centified Valuers),

During the first guarer of 2023, a roguest was submitted to the Building Development Company to transfer the lease
contract for an educational facility by the National Construction and Marketing Company to transfer it to the new investor,
Adwag Al-Hideya Schools Company (sister company). The approval was granted on 3272023 from the Building
Developmant Company.

On Shawwal [4, 1444 AH, cormesponding to May 4, 2023, the lease contract for an educational building was waived in
favor of the new investor, Adwia Al-Hidaya Schools Company (a sister company), at a value of 13, 100,000 Saudi rivals,
which resulted tn profits from the disposal of real estate investments worth 3,840,252 Saudi rivals.
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7. Investments Property, net (Continued)

Residentinl villas (under development):

The residential villas {under development) within real estete mvestmenis is represented by the agreement of the Al-Ahsa
Growth Investment Company - to presarve the assets of the Al-Ahsa Growth Fund with Al-Favem Real Estate
Development Company (the developer) te provide real estate development work services for the project (Note 20/1/2),

- The fair value of the residential villns amounted 10 168, 45458 Saudi rivals as of December 31, 2021, according to the
evaluation process carried out by the real estate evaluator, Wahat Al Rai Real Estate Valuation Company, license holder
Mo, 1210000045 (an ind=pendent evaluator aceredited by the Ssudi Avthority for Accredited Valuers), There is anoller
evaluation whose faic value amounted to 1H0A00.000 Sawd: rivals as of December 31, 2023, according 1o the evalualion
process curried out by the real estate evaluator, Ofog Real Estate Valuation Company, license holder Ko, 1210001244
{an independent evaluntor accredited by the Saudi Authority for Accredited Valuers),

Right of use assel:

The right of use asset within real estate investments is represented in two lease contracts for a residential and commercial
complex “Marvilla Complex” between the company and Majalgl Development Real Estate Company for a peried of 3
vears from 0371312023 AD until 03/ 1272028 AD for the purpess of earning rental income.

The fair value of the right of use asset was evaluated using the inceme method - the cash flow methad by calculating the
present value of the expected net eash flows by taking the tetal expected income subtracting the expense rate and the
rental walue, The result of this eguation was the present value of the cash flows in the emount of 9,135.428 SAR as of
Decamber 31, 2023, and this shows that There is no impairment in the book value of the real estate investment, according
to the evalustion process carried out by the real estate evaluator, Wahat Al Rai Real Esmte Valuation Company, license
number 1210000043, {Independent evaluator accredited by the Saudi Awthority for Accredited Evaluators).

The depreciation of Investments Property amounted to 33,440,689 SAR and 75,258 SAR, for the two years ending on
December 31, 2033 and 2022, respectively.

- The depreciation of Investments Property hes been charged as follows:

2023 2022
Cost of revenue 33,290,172 -
General and administrative expenses 150,517 75,258
33,440,689 73,258

8. Investments at fair value throngh profit or loss

Investments at fair value through short-term profit or loss are represented in investments in an
investment porifolio of the following:

December 31, 2022
December 31, 2023 {Resated)
Balance at beginning of the year 3,154,518 483336
Additions during the year al cost 310,632 2210165
Refunduble during the vesr (785,000) -
Investments profit at fair value through profits or losses 920,487 461,017
Balance at ending of the year 3,600,637 3154518

This ftem represents an investment in Rivadh Capital portfolio, which is held for the purpose of trading.
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9. Inventory, net
Spare parts, fuel and oils

Steel pallets - finished goods

Scrap [ron

Operation tasks

Other construction materials
Provision for slow moving item (9-1)

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
19,987,260 18,231,096
22,770,128 22384521
14,316,198 12,601,085

1,443,501 3,254.265
752,514 1,633,352
{3040, DDy £ 300, 00005
68,969,601 57804129

9-1 The movement in the provision for idle inventories for the year ended December 31 is as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year
Charged during the vear
Balance at the end of the vear

1, Trade receivables and other debit balances, net
Suppliers, advance payments

Customers - (note 10/1)

Accried revenie

Value Added Tax (VAT)

Aceounts receivable and employee's custody

Deposits for others

Margin against letters of guarantee and letters of credit
Prepaid expenses and other debit balances

Provision for expected credit loss (note 10/2)

10.1 Aging of trade receivables
From day till 180 day

From 181 till 360 day

Over 360 day

10.2 Provision for expected eredit losses

Balance at beginning of the year
Provision during the vear

2023 202
J00,000 -
- 300,000
300,000 300,000
December 31, 2022 | January 2022
December 31, 2023 [Restated] {Resiated)
35,014,161 25.811,568 28,555,570
36,536,571 27,273,018 S.027.475
6,103,069 - -
5,580,568 40,852 389 25,250,437
B71.026 1,441,001 3,232,030
90,239 araadl 312,324
69,000 30,081 18,774
048,216 364,542 L.073.487
§9.512,851 96,348,120 68,600,097
(8,183,073) (5,778,012) (2.411,253)
81329778 Q0,570 008 66,278,844
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 | January 2023
33013278 23,745,058 367,015
1.288,316 640,454 B.600 340
2,134,978 2,887,504 -
36,536,571 2T2TI 008 0027475
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 1| January 2022
5,778,112 2,411,253 2.411,253
2,404,961 3,366,850 -
8,183,073 3,778,112 2411,253
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11. Transactions with related parties

Related parties represent the main Sharcholders, directors of the Board, employees of the Company’s Seniar
Management, and the companies under the control of or significantly affected by these parties (other related
parties). During this period, the Group made transactions with the following related parties: (terms of
transactions with related parties were approved by the beard of directors) An independent report is presented
including all transactions that took place during the year to the General Assembly of Shareholders at its annual
meeting for approval.

Mature of December 11, 2022 | Japuary 2022
11.1 Due from related parties relutionship  December 31, 2023 {Restated) {Restated)
Al-Favzivah Real Estate Development
Company Alfilme 122,482,805 24312, 181 29,368,022
Ethraa Holding Company Eharehalder B,140,427 - 28,574
Al-Kharj Unbon Factory Company Affiliae &, 849,805 - 5,149,034
Flex Shield Company for Security and
Salety Affiliate 1,147,228 . 1417422
bajed Ayed Al-Chaibi A shareholder
in & subsidiary 37,500 317,500
Yugamesh Intermational Co., Lad A partner in &
subsidiary 36000 30,0l
The Production Organization - Southarn
Factory for Butlding Machinery in the
name of Ak, Makarow A partper ina
subsidiary 15,000 15,000 -
Shields Industry Company-Inks Material A shareholder
Branch in & subsidiary 5147 - 551,098
RAM Tech Company Subsidiary . - 120,160
Alma for Military [ndustries Company Subsidiary . 3,1 30
Jowdat Contracting Company Affliate - 21, 465813
Kakaat Food and Catering Company Alfliate . | 380,295
Trolley Carmage & [ron Works Ca, AdTiliate - 315,060
Adwaa Al-Hedaya Schools Company AdTiliate - 36,730
Manazel Alalamivah Company lor
Operation and Maintenance Shareholder - g1, 37
Flex Shield Company for Information
Technology Subsidiary - 101,919
Resin Indusiry Factory Adfiliate - 4,042 5464
Masayef Trading and Contracting A party related
Company to.a member of
the Board af
Diractors - 1,090,668 1,064,588
138,707,912 25 485349 53,557,408
MNature of
11.2 Due to related parties relationship December 31, 2023 December 3 1, 2022
Al-Fayzivah Real Estate Development
Company AdTiliate 28,530,124 -
Cerman Saudi [ndustrial Company Associate 13,158,450 23851440
Trolley Carriage & [ron Works Co, AlMilizte 135,271 BET 84T
Al-Ahsa Real Estate Growlh Fund Subsidiary . 33,292,750
Ethraa Helding Company Shareholder - 1,509,608
Melogica Inc A shareholder 20,323
in & subsidinry
521,913,845 f5.811.R58
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11. Transactions with related parties (Continued)
11.3. Significant transactions with related parties

Kakaat Food and Catering
Company

Trolley Carrisge & Iron Works Co.

Shields Industry Company - Inks
Mlaterial Branch

Flex Shield Company for Security
pnd Safety

Manazel Alalamivah Company lor

Operation and Malntenance

Hesin factory Tor industry

Al-Kharj Union Factory Company

Ethrap Holding Company

Nature of relationship 1023 2032
Paying salaries B 77419
Payment of fees on behull = (6,343)
Paying VAT on behalf of the company - 2435684
Transfer of debts betwesn companies™® (4,490,491 )
Firance - 480,000
Pay suppliers on behall - 23430
Paying VAT on behall of the company - (B34,374)
Peyment of suppliers / expenses on behalf 812,063 | 13,571
Purchases 222,759 (490, 97R)
Biles . 1027041
Firance (486,500 260477
114,058 .
Transfer of debis hetween companies**® - {1.303,318)
FPaying VAT on behalf of the company ) 562,384
Payment of fees on behalf (423,651) 41,616
Pay suppliers on behalf (1i0.916) (1.909.944)
Transfer of debls betwesn comparnies®® - (1,983,741}
Finance (1,260,B21) (7619
Paying salaries = § 133,699
Zales 1,800,515 Sa30004
Paying VAT on behall of the company ) 300,284
Transfer of debts between companies** - (2. 037,40)
Fimiince - Te0,000
Payment of fees on behall = C113.943)
Pay suppliers on behalf - {213,324)
Paying salaries - 12,7009
Translfer of debts betwesn companies*® ) {926,597)
Finance - | 76,000
Paying salaries - | 85,500
Paying VAT on behalf of the company - 28,952
Payment of fees on behalf = T1.341
Paying YAT on belall of the company - 1,606,388
Finance - 4, |80517
Paymient of fees on behalf B 452,267
Transfer of debts between companies** =+ (15,253.970)
Pay suppliers on bekall - 5427428
Purchases . (455,000)
Transfer of debis between companies™ - (13,090,654)
Payment of fees on behalf (127,914) 2514
Finance {6342 605) (3,142,979
Salbes 13,355,447 2885574
Paying salaries - {74,298)
Pay suppliers an behatf (17,723) 6,480
Prrchases {7, 4040 {£43,347)
Payment of fees on behatf 4,589,062 (3.008,414)
Pay suppliers on behalf (19,209 537} TH1.085
Finance 9,191,590 (23,964,707
Paving salaries 696,357 2400
Paying WAT on behalf of the company 10,479,443 -
Transfer of debts between companies™™® (6,787} 12828016
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11. Transactions with reloted parties...{continued)

1.3, Significant transactions with related parties...(continued)

Schools Adwaa Al-Hedaya
Company

Al-Fayzivah Real Estate
Development Company

Al-Fayzivih Beal Estate
Bevelopment Company
{due to a related party)

BEAM Tech Company

Jowdat Contracting Company

German Saodi Indusivial Company

Fahad Thanayyan Al-Thanayvvan

Shields Industry Company -
Scaffolding Rental Branch

Arabian Stones Company for
Marble nod Granite Industry Lid

Yugamesh International Co., Lid

Mature of iransaction 2023 2022
Advance payments under the acoount of the
costs  of establishing projects  under
implemeantation {Note {25, 100,000) -
Paying expenses on beball of the company - 17,739
Transfer of debts bétween companies®*® 545,531
Finance . (E00.000)
Eevenues from Al Jawhara project
(Mote 19) T, 192,913 144,917 899
The callection af revenue 157,016,375}  (162,275,245)
Revenues from Al Zahraa Project
{Mote 19/1/3) 29,561,803 15,600,750
Finanee 54,691,000 (4, 200,000)
Paying expenses on behalf of the company 75,714 6677
Pay WAT on helall (14,562) -
Transfer of delbis betwesn companias®® - (3,085 428)
Pay suppliers on behalf 12,521,154 21,135,755
Paying salarics J44.005 44 10040
The walue of the AlZahra projec
development works prepared for the fund in
gxchange for investment (33,202,750) (18,607 2500
The valug of the development work of the
Al-Zehrag project of the Al-Ahsa Growth
Fund 57517641
Payment of fees on behalf 4 1,B25
Tranafer of debts between companies™® (121,985
Finance (B.707.591)
Paying salaries - 364,034
Payment of suppliers / expenses on behalf (E.566.638)
Trunsfer of debt between compenies** (3,544 155)
Purchases - (59.262)
Finance 20,443,874 (2,630,000
Payment of suppliers / expenses on behall 98,032 2274011
Pay VAT on behalf (19.947,673) (16223430
Sales 498.757 =
Transfer of debits batween companies = 6,161,915
Transfer of debts between companics®*® (1,387,186}
Finance s {334.719)
Paying salaries - | 52458
Pay a tax group 218501
Payment of fees on behalf - [.782, 154
Pay suppliers on behatf i (453.200)
Transfier of debis betwesn companics®*®

- 443,000
Finance - (1,183,915}
Pay a tax group - (51,110}
Payment of fees on behalf - 52,025
Fay suppliers on behall - 250,000
Capital - 30,0600
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11. Transactions with related parties...(continued)

11.3. Significant transactions with related parties...(continued)

Mature of transaction 2023 2022
The Production Organization -
Southern Factory for Building
Machinery In the name of A,
Muakarov Capital - | 5,000
Majed Aved Al-nafiei Payment of fees on behalf - 37,500
Melogica Inc Paving salaries - [16.228%
Capital reduetion 39,217 -
Finance 41,100 -
Al-Ahsa Real Estate Growth Fund
Investing shares in Kind (Mote 6-A) 33,392,750 S0 D0 00y
The wvelue of the Al-Zehra project
development works prepared for the £md in
exchanges for investment (Mote 6-8) - 6,607, 250
Masayel Trading and Contracting Acling paymeniz
Compuny® = 2482148
Acting collectors - {2.455.868)
Pay suppliers {1,08{, 668) -
Flex Shield Company — Marvella Pay suppliers 1,147,228

* Transactions with Masaif Trading and Contracting Company are répresented in receipts and payments
in favor of Masaif Company, which are made through a bank sccount in the name of the Mational
Company for Building and Marketing and registered in its books. charges for these services,

*% [Jebt transfer transactions between companies are represented by either settling and clasing a balance
due between related parties or paying part af the balance owed by a related party.

11.4 Salaries, allowances and remunerations of Senior Executives and Board of Directors

The Company's Senior Management includes the Directors of the Board and Senior Executives who
exercise authority and responsibility in planning, directing and contralling the Company’s activities,
directly or indirectly. As of the year 2018, the Company's Board decided to grant its directors an annual
bonus and salaries for Senior Executives.

Cieneral and administrative expenses include during the years ending as follows:

2023 022
Remunerations and allowances of Board of Directors 273,000 185,000
Salaries and related allowanees 1o Senior Executives 2,598,143 295372

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

12. Cash and cash equivalent

Current account in jocal banks 8,515,250 9,837,867
Balance at end of the year 120,000,000 120,000,000

- The capital consists of 120,000,000 Saudi rivals, fully peid, distributed among 12,000,000 shares, each of
which has a value of 10 Saudi rivals.

- 0 23 Rabi® al-Awwal 1444H, corresponding to October 19, 2022, the company’s Board of Directors
decided to recommend to the extraordinary general assembly to increase the company's capital by an
amount of 150 million Saudi rivals to become 270 million Saudi riyals, by capitalizing 134,209,957 Saudi
rivals from the retained eamings account and capitalizing 13,790,043 Saudi rivals from the sccount. The
statutory reserve is to be granted (.25) shares for every (1} share,
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13. Share capital {Continued)

- On 2% Jumads al-Awwal 1444H, corresponding to November 19, 2022, the decision referred to above was
amended, as the company’s Board of Directors decided 1o recommend to the extraordinary general
assembly to increase the company's capital by 120 millien Saudi rivals to become 240 million Saudi riyvals,
hy capitalizing 103,486,931 Saudi riyals from the profits account. Remaining and capitalizing 14,378,650
Saudi riyals from the statutory reserve account and capitalizing 2,134,419 Saudi riyals from the profit
account for remeasuring employves benefits, provided that (1) share is granted for every (1) share, and until
the date of izsuance of the consolidated financial statements, the regulatory procedures have not heen

completed.

- On 19 Rabi" al-Awwal 1445H, corresponding to October 4, 2021, the company's Board of Directors
decided to withdraw the request to raise the capital submitted to the Capital Market Authority due to the

absence of the reasons for raising the company's capital at the time,

- On 18 Shawwa! 1444H, corresponding to May 8, 2023, the company's board of directors decided to
recommend to the extraordinary general assembly to split the nominal value of the company’s shares 1o |
Saudi riyal, so that the number of shares after the split would be 120 million shares instead of [2 million

shares,

- On 2 Dhul-Hijjah 1444H, corresponding to June 20, 2023, the company's board of directors decided to
amend the ahove-mentioned decision to recommend to the extraordinary general assembly 1o split the
nominal value af the company's shares into a quarter of 2 Saudi riyal, so that the number of shares after

the split would be 480 million sheres instead of 12 million shares.

December 31, 2022 | Jnnuary 2022
December 31, 2023 { Restated) {Restated)
14. Statutory reserve
Balance at beginning of the year 18,005,007 14,088 978 6,748,744
Provided for the yvear 3,388,013 3,916,029 7,340,234
Balance at cnd of the year 21,393,020 18,005,007 |4,0B8.978

A 10% of the annual net income i5 set aside for the statutory reserve, The Ordinary General Assembly may
discontinue such reserve when it reaches 3084 of the share capital. This reserve is not available for distribution

15. Employees’ defined benefit obligations

The movement of employees' defined benefit obligations in the statement of financial position was as

Fallows:

December 31,2023 December 31, 2022

Balance at beginning of the year 4,648,938 2,367 AR5
Provided during the vear (15/3) 1, 567300 875,379
{Gaing) loss of re-measurement of employees’

defined benefits {1,636,709) [.527,330
Finance costs (1573) 238,953 72.034
paid during the year (501,000 {L48,290)
Balance at end of the year 4317512 4 648,938
15.1 Assumptions used for caleulating the provision 2023 2022
Retirement age 60 years 60 years
Mortelity rate - Saudi Arabis 74 years 74 years
Discount rate g 4—4.5%
Annual salary increase rate . L7 3—329%
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15, Emplayees' defined benefit obligations (continued)

15.2 Sensitivity analvsis in case one of the main

factors changes: 2023 2022
Long Term Salary Increnses +1% 5,482,094 4 993 550
Leng Term Salary Increnses - 1% 4,646,593 4,466,560
Diizcount Rate +1% 4,647,535 4,352,420
Diseount Rate -1% 5,454,851 4005 [ED
15.3 The provided during the year iz allocated as follows: 023 2022
Charged to revenue cost 1,168,097 504,843
Charged to peneral and administrative expenses 638,186 352,565
1,806,283 d7.413

16. loans

16.1 Saudi Industrial Development Fund
Balanece at the beginning of the year

Additions during the year
Paid during the vear
Balance at énd of the vear

16.2 Alawwal Bank
Balance st the beginning of the year

Additions during the year
Paid during the year
Balance al end of the vear

16.3 Al-Rajhi Bank
Balance at the beginning of the year

Additions during the year
Paid during the vear
Balance at end of the year

16.4 Al-Inemn Bank

Paid during the vear
Additions during the year
Paid during the vear
Balance ut end of the year

16.5 Al-Rivadh Bank

Paid during the year
Additions during the year
Paid during the vear
Balance at end of the year

Long term loans - current portion
Long term loans - non-current portion
Total loans

18

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

81,100,000 55,486,000
3 32,614,000
{42,100,000) (7,000,000)
) 39,000,000 £1,100,000
. 28,083,801
: 2,892,496
- (30,976,297)
117,567,927 122,610,260
258,108,960 173,898 870
(255,676,894) (178.941.207)
119,999,993 117,567,927
34,843,847 35,669,890
100,974,590 45.224.235
_(50:B18.5TT] (46.050,278)
54,099 860 34,843,847
25,390,518 20,464,209
161,082,783 79,583,961
(59,763,829) (74,657.652)
125,709,472 35,300,518
369,709,325 258,902,292
369,709,325 258,002,292
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16. Inans (continued)

16.1 Saudi Industrial Development Fund

l.oan agreements were signed between the group and the Saudi Industrial Development Fund to obiain
loans in the amount of 91,100,000 Saudi rivals to finance the expansion dnd establishment of the
company's production facilities, of which 91,100,000 Saudi riyals were utilized, The fund's facility
pledges require the company to maintain specific financial levels and limit dividend distributions and
annual capite] expenditures above limits. Certain regulatory requirements require a paid-up capital of 53
million Saudi riyals, alang with amending the industrial license to reflect the actual project location, the
proposed products and production capecity, and other specific matters.

The laan is secured by the following guarantees as of December 31, 2023

- Mortgaging all the property, machinery and equipment of the subsidiary - Agij Sieel Factory Company
fior the Manufacture of Steel and its Derivatives.

- Personal guarantees from major shareholders of the parent company.

The total maturity of the loan depends on the repayment schedules agreed upon with the Fund, On
19/03/1443H, comresponding to 25/10/2021, the Saudi Industrial Development Fund agreed to reschedule
the balance of the loan granted to the subsidiary company in four unequal semi-annual instaliments,
starting from 15/10/8443H, corresponding to 16/05/2022, and ending on 15/04/1445H correspanding to
30v10/2023 after implementing the conditions contained in the rescheduling approval memorandum. [1is
the payment of an amount of 3 millicn Saudi riyals of the value owed by the company. The company
paid.

On 07/04/1445H, corresponding to 2271072023, the Saudi Industrial Development Fund agreed to
reschedule the balance of the loan granted to the group in six unequal semi-annual installments, starting
from 04/15/1445H, corresponding to 30/10/2023, and ending on 15/10/1447H corresponding to
(3/04/2026. The loan was classified as shor-term due to the company's non-compliance with the pledge
of the loan agreement regarding one of the financial commitments, which is represented by the ratio of
current assets to current liabilities.

16.2 Alawwal Bank facilities

The group enteréd into an agreement with Alawwal Bank to provide Tawarrug facilities to finance the
company's factory and equip its machinery and property. These loans carry financial charges based on
prevailing market rates.

The loan facility covenants require the Company to maintain specified financial levels, limit dividends
and annual capital expenditures above certain limits and other specified matters, The book values of fong-
term loans are shown in Saudi Riyals.

The bank facilities - Tawarrug are secured by the following guarantees:

- A duly signed promissory note amounting to 30,205 000 Saudi riyvals, payable upon request.

- Solidarity and solidarity puarantee in the amount of 30,205,000 Saudi riyals duly signed by the mamn
sharcholders of the parent company.

- Corporate guarantess in the amount of 30,205,000 Saudi riyals signed by Jawdat Contracting Company
(a related party).

- Confirmed waiver in favor of Alawwal Bank of the Mnancing proceeds of the Saudi Industrial
Development Fund.,

During the third quarter of 2022, the company repaid the Alawweal Bank loan through Saudi Industriaf
Development Fund loan payvments.

16.3 Al-Rajhi Bank facilities

The group entered into a benking facilities agreement with Al Rajhi Bank to finance working capital
through various facilities with a credit limit aof 120 million Saudi nyals, represented by issuing
participation credits, financing the importer, deferred payment, facilitating the deferved sales line, and
import financing,

The facilities are guaranteed by the following pusrantees, undertakings and conditions:

- Submitting an acknowledgment of a fine, instrument and commitment guarantee from the main
shareholders of the parent company.
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16. loans (continued)

16.3 Al-Rajhi Bank facilities (continued}

- Submitting a corporate sponsorship declaration from the German Saudi Industrial Company.

- A pledge from the company to provide the bank with a waiver ol a credit from Al Rajhi Steel Company
in the bank's account, covering |1 509 of the total facilities.

- An undertaking from the company to inform the bank of any changes in the cwnership of the obligor’s
issled capital.

- Submitting the company’s quarterly and semi-annual financial reperts and financial statements during
agreed upon periods from the end of each financial period {or in the case of the guarantor of the group's
financial statements) for that period, and he must ensure that the obligors do so.

- Financial and regulatory obligations, pledges. and other conditions related to the company’s financial

system.

16.4 Alinma Bank facilities

The company abtained credit facilities 1o finance working capital to finance participation credits and then
Murabaha in the amount of 83 million Saudi riyals, pursuant to fines and performance guaraniees from
one of the main shareholders and related party companies for both the German Saudi Industrial Company
and the Adwaa Al-Hidayah Schools Company for Boys and Girls. in addition to a real estate mortgage.
[t belongs to one of the main sharcholders and mortgages the company’s shares, and guarantees the
company's waiver of the entitlements for projects owned by Al-Fayzia Real Estate Development

Company (sister company ).

16.5 Riyad Bank facilitics

- On 06302021, the group signed a short-term bank Murabaha facility agreement with Riyad Bank worth
45 mallion riyals to finance working capital. Secured by a promissory note signed by one of the major
shareholders.

- On 127042022, the group signed a short-term bank Murabaha facility agreement with Riyad Bank worth
50 million rivals to finance working capital, By puaranteeing a promissory note signed by one of the
main shareholders and ensuring that the company waives his dues for the Al-Jawhare and Al-Zahraa
projects.

- On 02/15/2023, the group signed a short-term bank Murabaha facility agreement with Rivad Bank warth
81 million rivals to finance working capital. By guaranteeing a promissory note signed by one of the
main shareholders and ensuring that the company waives his dues for the Al-Jawhara and Al-Zahraa
projects.

16.6 Interest rates
The interest rates for the facilities and loans described above range betwesn 1% to 3.5% anmually.

17. Trade payables and other credit balances 3 December 2023 31 December 2022
Suppliers 35453956 34,325 2R5
Subcontractors 21,374,199 3,191, IR5
Accrued interest expenses 12,917,292 2 5B5 546
Customers - advance payments 10,371,555 614,661
Insurance recoverics 5,810,495 -
Uneammed revenue 5,464,564 -
Salaries, wages and allowances 5,136,347 4,313,742
Employee receivables . 110,000
Others 2,147377 496,586

08,675,785 46,637 005
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18. Provision for zakat | January 2022
18.1 Movement in provision for zakat 31 December 2023 31 Decomber 2022 {Restated)
Balance at beginning of the vear 1,506,651 2,132,384 TOR, 785
Paid during the year (925,613) (1,047.899) (970.63%)
Clearing duning the year (973,765) (1,121.706) (2,297,717
Zakat bonds 358,825 : 1,774,643
Provided during the year 1,932,564 1,543,872 2917312
Balance at end of the vear 1.898,662 1.506.651 2,132,384

18.2 Zakat status

18.2.1 Parent Company

- The parent company submitted zakat returns to the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority for all vears up
ta December 31, 2022 and obtained the final certificate for the year ended December 31, 2022, The
company is still awaiting fing] assessments until December 31, 2023

- During the yvear 2023, a zakat assessment was received for the vears 2017 and 201 8, which resulted in
zakat differences in the amount of 358,825 Saudi riyals, and the amount was paid,

18.2.2 Subsidiary

- Ajeej Stoe| Manufacturing Factory Company and its derivatives submitted zakat returns to the Zakat,
Tax and Customs Authority for all vears until December 31, 2022 and obtained the final certificate for
the year ending December 31, 2022, The company is still aweiting the final assessments until December
11, 2023.

- Flexible Shieid Information Technology Company submitted zakat retums to the Zakat, Tax and
Customs Authority for all years until December 31, 2022 and obtained the final certificate for the year
ending December 31, 2022, The company is still awaiting the final assessments until December 31,
2023,

- Yuzmash Industry Company submitted zakat returns to the Zaket, Tax and Customs Authority for all
years until December 31, 2022 and obtained the final certificate for the year ending December 31, 2022,
The company is still awaiting the final assessments until December 31, 2023,

- Alma Military Industries submitted zakat returns to the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority for all years
until December 31, 2022, The company is still awaiting the final assessments until December 31, 2023,

19, Revenues 2023 20232

Steal billets 496,137,563 477,290,380

Construction projects (19.1) 00,754,716 160,518,640

Construction material 42,932,214 12,155,013

Software sales and maintenance 10,166,349 2375522

lease revenue 51,620,759 =
TiHl 611,601 652,189,564

Revenue includes revenue from related parties whose percentage of total revenue was 16.4% for the
year 2023 (2022: 26.9%)

19.1 Construction projects 2023 2022

Al-Jawhara Praject - Note 19/1/1 70,192,913 44,917 899

Al-Zahraa Project - Note 19/1:2 29,561,803 13,600,750
99,754,716 160,518,649
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19, Revenues (coniinued)
19.1 Construction projects (continued)

1%1/1 Al-Jawharah Project
- Based on the tripantite contrect concluded on Jenuary 16, 2021 between Al Fayzieh Real Estate
Development Company {first party - related party ), Jawdat Contracting Company (second party - related
party] and the National Building and Marketing Company {third party), as the lirst party is the developer
of the Al Jawhara project Residential, which had previously contracted with the Ministry of Housing
on land owned by the developer.
- The contract includes the commitment of the first party to disburse the ongeing execution extracts so
that the value of the extracts is transferred by 15% to the second party and 85% to the third party in
return for the supply, implementation and supervision of the construction of residential villas as of
extract No. (18), which represents §5.7% of the todal sales of the project subject Contract. On June 15,
2021, an addendum to the contract was made, which stipulates the waiver of the second party 15% for
the third party, provided that it performs all the remaining works and cbligations in the contract and
obtains the full value of the works, afier approving the extracts from the legal suditor and the consulting
affice supervising the construetion works appointed by the project developer, from the real estate
escrow account of the developer.
Based on the above-mentioned contract, an agreement was made on January 20, 2021, and a follow-up
with the company (the developer's agent) and RS Infratech Saudi Arabia Limited as a subcontractor to
implement all the works of the aforementioned contract,

- The following is & summary of the contracts: Revenue Cost
Total contracts * 644,316,040 479,269,832
Less: Total completed parts of contracts during the year 2021 (269.,893,718) (200,202,921)
Less: Total completed parts of contracts during the year 2022 (144,917,899} (108,453,174}
Less: Total completed parts of contracts during the year 2023 (70,192,913)  (51,842,809)
Remaining parts of contracts 150,311,510 118,770,927

= The total revenue is represented in the total value of the contract amounting to 775,000,000 Sawdi rivals,
from which the previously executed executor is deducted, up to extract No. (17} in the amount of
130,683,960 Saudi rivals, which was executed through Jawdat Contracting Company.

* The total cost of the contract gmounting to 479,269,832 Saudi riyals is represented in contracting with
the contractor, RS Infratech Saudi Company Limited.

19/1/2 Al-Zahra Project

- It is a contrael concluded on 1/7/2022 between Al-Fayzia Real Estate Development Company (related
party) { first party) and the Nationa! Construction and Marketing Company {second party - executor), as
the first parly is the main developer of the Al-Zahrae residential project, which had previously
contracted. With Noemou Al-Ahsa Investment Company as the custodian of the assets of Nomou Al-
Ahsa Real Estate Fund 10 undertake the real estate development work for the project.

- On 7/1/2022, Al-Fayzia Real Estate Development Company contracted with the Waticnal Company to
implement the construction of villas and residential apartments in the Al-Zahraa residential project in
the amount of 145,700,000 Saudi rivals, as the company's total revenues during the project
implementation period.

- On /772022, the National Construction and Marketing Company contracted with RS Infratech Saudi
Company Limited as a subcontractor to implement all the work of the Al-Zahraa project at an amount
of 120,320,000 Saudi riyals as a cost to the company during the project implementation period.

- The following is & summary of contract data Revenue Cost
Total contracis 145,700,000 120,320,000
Deducted: the tata! number of contracts executed durlng 2022 {15,600,750) (1282841100
Deducted: the total number of contracts executed during 2023

- Nate 19.1.3 (50.769,196) (41,980,319}
The rest of contracts 79,330,054 65,511,271
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19. Revenues {continmed)

19/1/3 Excluding the revenues and costs of the Al-Zahraa project as a result of consolidating the
financial statements of the Al-Ahsa Real Estate Growth Fund (Subsidiary Company):

On May 11, 2023, the company scquired the fund, and as a result of the acquisition, the fund’s financial
siaterments were consolidated with the group's financial statements, thus excluding the revenues and costs
of this project that were implemented from the date of acquisition until the end of the fiscal year as
follows:

Revenue Cost

Total number of contracts implemerited during 2023 50,769,196 41,980,312

Amounis excluded for the tomal outlel from the acguisition date to the end of 2023 (21,207.393) (17, 4%96,099)
Net port 29,561,803 14,484,220
20. Cost of revenue 2023 2022
Inventory at beginning of the year 36,155,399 45,309,755
Purchazes during the year 474,941,562 438 366,912
Spare parts and raw materials transferred to property and equipment {22,453,156) [10,B43,657)
Spare parts and raw materials transferred to maintenance expenses (3,727,457 (2.735.052)
Inventory at end of the year {16,881.652) (316.155,399)
Cost of materials used for production 438,034,696 433,942,579
Operating expenses (20/1) 115,690,567 fid, [ 00,005
Subcontractor work 62,751,377 103,514,910
Finished goods cost 616,476,640 B 1,.557.404
Beginning of year inventory - complete praduction 22,384,321 2,843 354
End of vear inventory - complete production {22,387,949) 22,384.321)
Cost of revenue 616,473,012 582.018.527
20.1 Operating expenses 1023 2022
Depreciations on real estate investments 33,290,172 -
Depreciations on property and eguipment 31,976,782 27,904,787
Salaries, wages and related expenses 26,906,378 18,171,885
Generators for rent 8,550,306 6,888 714
Maintenance and spare parts 5,153,965 3,395,230
Transport and Shipping 4,746,349 1,090,452
Government fees and expenses 1,585,174 1,012,293
Generator rental 1,402,600 &.700,910
Post and telephone I8 456 247058
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 349,284 126,273
Security and guarding expenses 325427 .
Other expenses 960,674 560,501
115,690,567 64,100,005
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21. General and administrative expenses 2023 2022
Salaries, wages and related expenses 10,761,896 BI57.177
Consulting and professional fees 2,284,650 2305470
Fund management fees 1,824,530 =
GOSI 719,777 705,551
Electricity and water 629,000 98,167
Employees' defined benefits 623,185 3418309
VAT differences expenses 617,869 -
Government fees and expenses 574,056 425,066
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 554,041 1,459.479
Visas and residence permit 415,268 249,606
Bonuses and allowances of Board of Directors 303,000 197,000
Insurance expenses 255,905 166,772
Depreciation on real esiate investment 150,517 75,258
Maintenance expenses 119,412 422,419
Rent 90,566 673,742
Depreciation on property and equipment 42,923 86238
Stationary and printings 4,982 (0,149
Post and telephone - 20,742
Provision for slow moving item - 100,000
Other 1,180,637 1,080,612
21,162,304 18.376,257
22. Finance costs 2023 2022
Finance charges and bank finance costs 30,984,934 8076202
Inferest expense on right-of-use assets 12,433,614 1,324 433
43418548 10,300,635
23. Other revenue 2023 2022
Gains on disposal of real estate investments 5,840,252 2
Gains on the exelusion of the right 1o use assels . 2,152,981
Other 41,109 300,000

5,881,361 2452981

24. Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share is caleulated by dividing the annual profit attributable to the

Company's Shareholders by the weighted average number of shares issued as follaws:

2023 2022 (Restated)
Profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of the company 30614473 38,742 308
Weighted average number of shares [ssued 12,000,000 12,000,000
Basic and diluted earnings per share 2.55 323
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25. Segment report

A reporting segment is 2 group of assets and operations that includes revenue-producing activities; the results
of which are continuouvsly analyzed by management in ordet to make decisions aboul resource allocation
and performance assessment, and financial information is provided separately.

The Group President and the Board of Directors monitor the results of the Group's operations in order o
make decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment, These parties are collectively those
responsible for making operational decisions for the Group (the decision makers).

Diecision makers are currently examining operations mainly in the following sectars:

For the vear ended December 31, 2023

Manufacturing Contracting Infarmation Alma and
of steel billets projects Commercial  technology  Usemash Total
Revenue 496,137,563 120986529  T3A11,160 10,166,349 - 70611601
Cost of revenue (456.218,050) (76,327,030) (75,762.024)  (8,165908) - (616,473,012)
Net income 12,755,723 5,247,823 1,311,956 1,309,291 (§7,265) 30,537,528
Property, plant and
couipment - net 359,809,564 4 452 - - - 3E0,074016
Finance charges (13.825376) (29,593,172 - - - [43418.348)
For the year ended December 31, 2022
Manufacturing Contracting Information  Alma and
of steel billets projects Commercial technology  Usemash Taotal
Revenue 477,290,380 160,518,649 12,055,003 2,325,522 652,189,564
Cost of revenue (447,661,234 (122290237)  (ID.085,352) (19817040 [SH2.008 527
Het ncome 17,578.240 20,280,333 Q60,000 19, 64% {61,834) 18,776,368
Property, plant and
Bguiproent - neg 339,990 386 - 373,743 J40ETI 129
Finance charges (6422.633)  (3.878,002) . # (10,300,635}
Revenues are summarized by geographic regions below:
For the year ended December 31, 2023
Manufacturing Contracting Information  Alma and
of steel billets projects Commercial technology Uisemazh Tatal
Kingdom Saudi Arabia 485,156,072 120,986,529 73,311,160 10,066,347 - GREDEIL1L0
Kingdam Jordan und Irag 10,981,451 - - - - 10,951,4%1
For the year ended December 31, 2022
Manufacturing Contracting information  Alma and
of steel billets projects Commercial  technology Usemash Total
Kingdom Saudi Arabia 464,774 243 |61,393,291 b 180,371 2,325,522 - H39673 427
Kingdom Jordan and [rag 12,516,137 - . * - 4,316,137
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26. Financial instruments
26.1 Share capital management:

The Group's objectives when managing the share capital are to proteet its ability 1o continue as a going
concern and generate maximum returns for sharehalders and benefits for other stakeholders as well, and
to maintain & strong capital structure and reduce cost of the share capial.

The Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders or manage its working capital
requirements in order to maintain or adjust the share capital, The Group monitors the share capital on the
basis of the gearing ratio. The Group aims to maintain a debt percentage of 30%-30%. The vatio is
caleulated by dividing the net debt by the total share capital,

Net debt is calculated by taking total loans (including current and non-current loans as staled in the
financial position) less cash and bank balances (including short-term deposits). Toial share capital is
calculated on the basis of equity and net debi as shown in the financial position.

The gearing ratio was as follows:

2023 2022
Total borrowings 369,708 325 258,902 292
Less: Cash and bank balances ~ (8,515,250) (9. 837.867)
Met debt T 361,194,078 0 249,064,425
Total share capital 668,799,041 512,711,319
Ciearing ratio 54% LB.6%

Group has not changed its approach to managing the share capital during the years ended December 31,

2023 and 2022.

Categories of financial instruments:

The accounting policies related to financial instruments were applied to the below items:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Investments at fair value through profit and loss
Quoted equity shares 3,600,637 3,154,518
Tuotal 3,600,637 3,154 518

Financial assets at amortized cost

December 31, 21523

December 31, 2022

Trade and other receivables 89,513 851 05,348,120
Amount due from related parties 138,707,912 25,483,349
Cash and cash equivalents 8,515,250 Q. 837.867
Total 236,736,013 131,671,336

Oither financial liabilities at amortized cost

December 31, 2023

Decembay 31, 2023

Term loans 369, 709325 258,502,292
Amount due to related parties 52,913,545 0382 858
Trade and other payables 48,675,785 46,637,005
Total 521,298,955 371,361,155
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26. Financial instruments (continoed)
26.2 Financial instruments and risk management

- The Group’s activities are exposed to various financial risks including: Liquidity risk, credit risk, and
market risk (include currency risk, fair value risk, cash flow of commission rate and price risk). The
Ciroup's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimize potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

- Group's finencial instruments comprise financial assets (cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables,
investments at fair value through profit or loss, and cther receivables) and financial liabilities (banks-
credit facilities, trade and other payables) and include the following risks:

26.3 Liquidity risks

Ligquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments
associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from the inability to sell a financial asset
quickly at an amount close to its fair value. The Group manages and monitors liquidity risks on a regular
basis to ensure that sufficient funds are available through bank facilities to meet any future commitments,

The Group's terms of sales stipulate that payment are made in cash upon delivery of the poods or on a
credit sale basis according to credit terms whose payment term usually ranges between 30 to 180 days.

All current liabilities are expected to be settled within 12 months as of the date of the financial statements,
Trade payables are usually settled within 30-90 days as of the purchase date.

26.4 Credit Risk Management
Credit risk is the risk that other parties will not be able to meet their contractual obligations to the Group,

which may result in a financial loss to the Group. The concentrations of patential credit nisk include
mainly trade receivables and shor-term cash investments, Short term cash investments are deposited with
banks having a high eredit rating, The Group’s Management believes that there are no concentrations of
credit risk for which no adequate provision has been made as al Group reporting date.

December 31, 2023
0w demand ar less
than a year More than year Carrying amount
Long term loans 169,709,315 - 369,705,315
Trade payahles and other credit balances [B8, 226,467 495,402,057 283,628,524
Due 10 related parties 52,913,845 . 52,913,845
B10,84% 637 05,402,057 TG 251 6594
December 31, 2022
On demand or lesz
than a year More than vedr Carrying amount
Long term loans 238,902,292 - 438,903,292
Trade payables and other credit balances 33,800,049 BTR.633 54,678,682
Due 1o related parties 65,82 R5E - 65,821 858
378,524,109 B7EA313 379,402 832
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26, Financial instruments (continued)
26.4 Credit Risk Management (continued)

- Market risk

- Market risk is the risk of fluctuations in a financial instrument due to changes in prévailing market prices
such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates, and equity rates, which affect the Group's income or the
value of its financial instruments. Market risk management aims to manage and contral market risk
exposure within acceptable parameters while maximizing returns.

- Currency risk

- Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will Mluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates affecting foreign currency payments and receipts along with assessment of assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies.

= The Group is subject to uctuations in foreign exchange rates in the normal course of its business. The
Management regularly monilors changes in foreign exchange rates and manages the impacl on the
financial statements,

Fair value rizsk
Fair value iz the amoum for which an asset could be exchanged, or a lizbility sertled between

knowledgeable, willing parties in &n arm's length transaction, Since the Group's financial staterments are
prepared under the historical cost principle, differences may arise between the carrying amount and the
fair value estimetes. The Group's Management believes that the fair value of the Group's financial assets
and liabilities approximates their balances carried forward.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory apency, and
those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
When measuring fair value, the Group uses nbservable market information whenever passible, Fair values
arce categorized into different levels in the fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
methods as follows:

Level 1: [nputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics that the
enlity can access at tho measurement date;

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (l.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from pricesk

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

=If multiple inputs psed to measure fair value are cateporized into different levels of the fair value
hierarchy, the Fair Value Measurement is categorized in its entirety in the level of the lowest level input
that 15 significant 1o the entire measurement.

-The Group recognizes trensfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period in which the change occurred. During the period there were no transfers between the fair value
levels of Level 1 and Level 2,

-As the Group's financial instruments are compiled according to the historical cost principle, with the
exception of investments and derivative financial Instruments that are carried at fair value, differences
may arise between the book value and fair value estimates. Management believes that the fair values of
the group's financial assets and liabilities do not difTer materially from their book value.
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26. Financial instruments...(continued)

The financial assets measured at fair value

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
The balance as at December 31, 2023
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 3,600,637 - - 3,600,637
The balance as at December 31, 2022
Investments at fair value through profit orloss 3,154,518 - - 3,154,518

The company did not disclose the fair values of financial instruments such as cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, trade payables, amounts payable and other current liabilities; Because their book values
are considered a logical approximation to the fair value, which is largely due to the short-term maturity
dates of these instruments,

= Interest rate risk (currencies)

Commission rate risk represents the risk that the value of financial instruments will Auctuate due to
changes in commission rates prevailing in the market. The Company Is subject to commission rate risk
on credit facilities and long-term interest-bearing loans,

The table below reflects the impact of commission rate risk on income as a result of reasonable possihle
changes in commission rates, as well as all ather changes that remain constant. Commission rate risk has
no iMpact on equity.,

The impact on income represents the impact of the assumed changes in commission rates on the
company's profits for one vear, based on financial liabilities with a floating rate as of December 31;

The effect on the income for the year

Increase (decrease) in basis points 2023 2022
+1 3,657,829 2,589,023
-1 (3,657,829 (2,589,023)

- Commodity price risk

Commodity price risk is the risk associated with changes to the prices of cenain commodities to which
the Group is exposed as a result of adverse impact on the Group's costs and cash flows. The commadity
price risks arise from the expected purchases of certain commadities made of raw materials used by the
Group.

27. Reclassification

The management has reclassified some balences aceording to the following details;

= A supplier balance amounting to 536,803 Saudi rivals was reclassified as part of the refundable
insurance balance owed fo the same supplier,

Therefore, the group’s management reclassified these balances, and the following is a summary af these
amendments:

Ag af December 31, 2022 Impact of reclassification

previously Reciassification  Balance afler
Statement of inancial position recorded amounis effect Adjustment
Current assets
Trade receivables and other debit bakances, net 07,639,034 (536.803) 9T 102,233
Trade payables and other credit balances 47,173,808 {536.803) 46,637,005
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28- Adjustment

Management has re-evaluated the secounting treatment of certain transactions and balances recorded in
the non-consolidated special purpose financial statements in previous vears to determine whether these
transactions and balances have been accurately accounted for under the International Finencial Reporting
Standards adopted in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. When necessary, adjustments to comparative figures
have been made in accordance with International Accounting Standard Mo. & “Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Emors” approved in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. As a result,
munagement has adjusted some comparative figures to correct errars as shown below:

- During the year ending December 31, 2023, the acepunting treatment for investment st fair value

through profit or loss in the Al-Ahsa Real Estate Growth Fund “the Fund™ was modified to become the
equity method due to the presence of the important effect that the company did not take into account at
the time by representing the company by 40%. % of the fund’s board members and owning & percentage

higher than 50% of the fund's units.

- The value-added tax balance and the zakat allocation balance consisting of previous years were settled
becanse that balance was not settled with companies within the VAT group (As the company submits
n unified VAT retum with related party companies) in those vears and a clearing was made in the

company s accounting records with the dues of the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority,

- According to the Companies Law in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabla, the company must transfer |0% of
its net income to the statutory reserve until this reserve equals 30% of its capital, As a result of the
impact of the above amendments, management has reassessed the amount carried forward o the

stalulory reserve as at December 31, 2021 and January 1, 2022,

-The impact of the above on the consolidated finencial statements is as follows:

Consolidated statement of financial position as of January 1, 2022
Balance before adjustment

Reelassification

Balance after adjustment

as of January 1, 2022 effect as of January 1, 2022
Current assets
e from related parties 62 444 606 3112802 65,557,408
Trade receivables and other debit balances, net 71,689,363 (3410519 66,278 844
Current linbilities
Estimated zakat provision 2813,108 (680,724) 2,132,384
Sharcholders® equity
Retained eamings 01,622,627 {1,455,294) 00,167.333
Regular reserve 14,250,677 (161,699) (4,088,978
Consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31, 2022
Balance before adjustment  Heclassification  Balance after adjustment
ns of December 31, 2022 effect as of December 31, 2022

Non-current asseis
Investment at fair value through profit or loss BR.626,017  (B5.471,499) 3,154,518
Investments in agsociates | T,485,787 77,374,902 Gd, B60.680
Current assets
Due from related parties 22,172,547 3,112,802 25,485,349
Trade receivables and other debit balances, net 97,102,233 (6,532.225) 90,570,008
Shareholders® equity
Retained eamings 133,721,238 (8,742,231} | 24,970,007
Statutory reserve 18,976,366 {971.359) 18,005,007
Current liabilities
Prowvision for zakat 3,309,081 (1,802,430) 1,506,651
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28- Adjustment (Continued)

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ending
December 31, 2022

Balunce before ndjustiment  Heclassification  Balance afier adjusiment

ns of December 31, 20232 effect as of December 31, 2022
[nvestment at fair valoe
through profit or loss 5,933,516 (3.471.499) 461.M7
The Company's share the profits /
{losses) of its associate 1,904,054 (2,625,098) (721,044}
Basic and diluted eamings per share 19] (0.68) 323
249, Contingent commitments and liabilities
2023 2022
Unexecuted contractual commitments (Mote 19/1) 184,282,198 278,105.326
Letters af credit 5,761,403 3,201,639

30, Subsequent events

-0On 19/06/1445H (cormresponding to 01/01°2024), the owner of the subsidiary company - Ajej Steel and
Deerivatives Industries Company - & one-person "limited lability" company decided to convert it into an
unlisted closed joint stock company with its rights and obligations, and the legal procedures were completed.

- On February 28, 2024, the group signed a short-term bank Murabaha facility agreement with Rivad Bank
waorth 195 million riyals to finance working capital. By guaranteeing a promissory note signed by one of the
main shareholders and ensuring that the company waives his dues for the Al-Jawhara and Al-Zahraa projects
(Note 16).

- Omn 6 March 2024, the group entered into & banking facilities agreement with Al Rajhi Bank to finance
warking capital through various facilities with a credit limit of 127 million Saudi rivals, consisting of issuing
participation credits, importer financing, deferred payment, deferred sales line facilitation, import financing,
and a payment period of 48 months, and a limit of 7 million Saudi riyals has been added for the purpose of
hedping the risks of fluctuations in floating profit rates and stabilizing the profit rate (Note 16).

Oither than what was stated above, management believes that there are no significant subsequent events from
the end of the year until the reporting date that may affect the group’s consolidated financial statements.

31, Approval of consolidated financial statements
These consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on |4 Ramadan 1445H (24

March 2024).
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